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MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

To the City Council of 
the City of Lafayette, California 

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of the City of Lafayette as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2017, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a 
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. In addition, because of inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of 
management override of controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected by 
such controls. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the City's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We 
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. We consider the deficiencies in internal control included on the Schedule of Significant 
Deficiencies to be significant deficiencies. 

Included in the Schedule of Other Matters are recommendations not meeting the above definitions that we 
believe are opportunities for strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency. 

Management's written responses included in this report have not been subjected to the audit procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

Accountancy Corporation 

3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215 

Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 1 

T 925 .930.0902 

F 925.930.01 35 

E maze@mazeassociates.com 

w mazeassociates.com 



This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others 
within the organization, and agencies and pass-through entities requiring compliance with Government 
Auditing Standards, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

tWl,a ~a i ~ ~u~ 
Pleasant Hill, California 
November 15, 2017 
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2017-01 

CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

SCHEDULE OF SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES 

Review of Changes to Vendor Database 

Criteria: Employees who have access to the cash disbursement module should not also have the ability 
to edit the vendor database. Good internal controls require that employees with access to the City's assets 
not have access to the City's accounting records for the same assets. 

Condition: During our examination of the City's disbursement procedures we noted that one employee 
that has access to the accounts payable module also can edit the vendor database. fu addition, there is 
currently no review performed of changes made to the vendor database. Although the Administrative 
Services Director reviews the check run, the report she reviews only shows the vendor field but not the 
payee field to which the checks are made. 

Cause: The size of the City's staff makes it difficult to segregate the duties of disbursement process and 
vendor database management. fu addition, the City was not aware that a review of the vendor database 
changes was necessary. 

Potential Effect: The above condition exposes the City to the risk of phantom vendors and 
unsubstantiated disbursement transactions. 

Recommendation: If the segregation of duties between disbursement process and vendor database 
maintenance is deemed impossible due to the size of City staff, a system-generated report that shows 
changes to the vendor database should be reviewed periodically by an employee who does not have 
access to the database. Alternatively, a column should be added to the report that the Administrative 
Services Director reviews, for check runs, to show the payees of the checks. 

Management Response: Segregation of duties between the disbursement process and vendor database 
maintenance is not possible due to the size of City staff. fu order to address the risk of phantom vendors 
and unsubstantiated disbursement transactions, staff proposed to include the Vendor ID and Vendor Name 
(or payee) on the Unposted General Ledger Transactions - AP CHECKS report that is reviewed by the 
Financial Services Manager and the CheckN oucher Register, which is reviewed by the Administrative 
Services Director. As part of their reviews, the Manager and Director will make sure that the vendor 
names are consistent with the invoice being paid. These changes have been put in place. 
Recommendation implemented 

2017-02 Internal Controls Over Cash Receipts 

Criteria: All cash receipts collected should be accounted for using pre-numbered receipts. 

Condition: The City's front desk area takes in cash receipts for three departments (Administration, 
Planning & Building, and Engineering). During our examination of the City's cash receipts procedures in 
the front desk area, we noted that although a 3-part manual receipt book is used, the City does not log all 
revenue received in the manual receipt book. For some charges that require extensive calculations, an 
Excel spreadsheet will be attached to the revenue collected instead of a pre-numbered cash receipt. The 
Excel spreadsheet and the amount received are then placed in the in-box of the Accountant who inputs the 
data into the City's general ledger and perform cash receipts reconciliation at the end of the day. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

SCHEDULE OF SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES 

Cause: ·The current processes have evolved over time as different departments established the collection 
of their fees. 

Potential Effect: As part of the daily cash receipts reconciliation, the Accountant accounts for the 
numerical sequence of the cash receipts and ensures that the total revenue per receipt book equals to the 
revenue collected. However, for receipts that are not logged in the receipt book, there is a risk that cash 
receipts do not get into the Accountant's inbox, thus not getting input into the City's general ledger. 

Recommendation: Since there is already a 3-part manual receipt book in used and a reconciliation 
process in place, the City should make sure that all cash receipts collected at the front desk area are 
logged in the receipt book 

In addition, on a monthly basis, general ledger revenue reports should be given to department heads so 
that they can verify if all revenues have been captured by the City's financial system. 

Management Response: Staff is working with the financial system vendor to explore what options there 
are for integrated cash receipting. 

Receipt numbers are not currently issued when the "AR Form" (Excel spreadsheet) is used for some 
Planning payments. To address consistent use of pre-numbered receipts, staff proposes that going 
forward, a manual cash receipt form will be attached to each of these so that it may be referenced with a 
receipt number in the future. In addition, a sign will be installed at the front counter notifying customers 
that "You should receive a receipt (insert image of cash receipt form) with each transaction." 

To address the issue of receipt tracking, staff proposes that the blank pre-numbered cash receipts be 
maintained in the Finance office. A 3-part manual receipt is currently used wherein one part goes to the 
customer, one part to Finance and one part stays with the department. Front counter staff using the forms 
will "check out" a range of cash receipts and return the department copy before "checking out" another 
batch. When the department copies are returned, Finance staff will verify that copies of all receipts are 
returned. If receipts are missing, this will be noted on the log and researched by Finance staff with the 
respective department. 

Given that the revenue streams under review are highly sporadic, department head review of general 
ledger revenue reports may not be an effective way of ensuring that all revenues are captured by City's 
financial system. Instead, staff proposes that periodically, Finance staff will also spot check several 
receipts in the returned range of receipts to verify that the revenues were posted in the fmancial system. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS 

NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS OR PRONOUNCEMENTS NOT YET EFFECTIVE 

The following comment represents new pronouncements talcing effect in the next two years. We have 
cited them here to keep you abreast of developments: 

Effective in fiscal year 2017-18: 

GASB 75 -Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemplovment Benefits Other Than Pensions 

The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and 
local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or 
OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial 
support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This Statement results from a comprehensive review 
of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for all postemployment 
benefits (pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting 
assessments of accountability and inter-period equity, and creating additional transparency. 

GASB 81 - Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements 

This Statement requires that a government that receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable split-interest 
agreement recognize assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at the inception of the 
agreement. Furthermore, this Statement requires that a government recognize assets representing its 
beneficial interests in irrevocable split-interest agreements that are administered by a third party, if the 
government controls the present service capacity of the beneficial interests. This Statement requires that a 
government recognize revenue when the resources become applicable to the reporting period. 

GASB85- Omnibus 2017 

The objective of this Statement is to address practice issues that have been identified during 
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics 
including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, 
and postemployment benefits (pensions and other postemployment benefits [OPEB]). 

GASB86- Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues 

The primary objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting 
for in-substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other 
monetary assets acquired with only existing resources-resources other than the proceeds of refunding 
debt-are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also 
improves accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes 
to financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS 

Effective in fiscal year 2018-19: 

GASB 83 - Certain Asset Retirement Obligations 

This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations 
(AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital 
asset. A government that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its 
tangible capital assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance in this Statement. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

CURRENT STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR MATERIAL WEAKNESS 

2015-01 Super-User Rights 

Criteria: A system super-user is an individual who has full access over the City's financial system 
including all modules and all functions. This type of access should be limited to as few people as 
possible. If possible, super-user rights should be removed from Finance Department staff completely. 

Condition: During our interim audit, we noted that three Finance employees (the Financial Services 
Manager, the Accountant, and the Accounting Assistant) have super-user rights. In addition, they 
have access to the following areas: 

• Cash and investments: the Financial Services Manager is the primary reviewer of accounting 
transactions. In addition, she can authorize investment and trustee transactions. She is also 
responsible for reconciling investment accounts to general ledger and preparing investment 
summary for Council. 

• Cash receipts: the Accountant and Accounting Assistant have access to cash and loan 
receipts, NSF checks and customer database. Currently, data changed in the customer 
database are automatically imported into the general ledger. All voided receipts have to be 
run through the accounts payable module. However, there still exists a risk that cash receipts 
are intercepted before they get into the system. 

• Disbursements cycle: all three super-users have access to the accounts payable module and 
vendor database. They also have access to disbursement blank check stock and 1099 forms. 
In addition, the Finance Services Manager verifies check registers with the supporting 
documents. 

• Payroll cycle: all three super-users have access to the payroll module and human resources 
database. They also have access to payroll blank check stock and unclaimed paychecks. In 
addition, the Finance Services Manager reviews payroll registers. 

Cause: The City has not reviewed the access log. Therefore, they are not aware of the extent of 
access employees have within the accounting system. In addition, due to the small size of City 
staff, the City feels that certain duties cannot be further segregated. 

Potential Effect: This condition does not permit for good checks and balances to be performed 
by multiple employees. 

Recommendation: The City should review the necessity of granting any employee the super­
user rights to the financial system. For any module within the fmancial system that these 
employees do not need to edit, their access should be limited to read-only. If this is deemed 
impossible due to the size of the City staff, the City should consider implementing the following 
controls: 

• The employee who reconciles the investment and trustee accounts should not be able to 
authorize transactions in those accounts. . 

• Staff that handles cash receipts should not be able to alter data in the customer database. 
Alternative, the Administrative Services Director should review exception reports 
generated by the system that show all voided receipts and adjustments made to the 
customer database. 

• We understand that the Administrative Services Director currently reviews check register 
and certain payroll run data. As part of the review, she should also review the following: 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

CURRENT STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR MATERIAL WEAKNESS 

o Check logs of both disbursements and payroll checks to ensure that no manual 
checks were written without her approval since the last payroll or check run she 
reviewed. 

o Exception reports generated by the system that show changes made to the vendor 
database and human resources database during the period. Special attention 
should be paid to any new employees or vendor, and any changes made to the 
employees who have access to the payroll or disbursement modules, human 
resources or vendor database. 

o For every payroll run, select a sample of employees from the payroll register to 
verify for their existence and accuracy of pay. 

o For every check run, select a sample of payments from the check register to 
verify their validity. 

Current Year Status: 
o Cash and investments: Recommendation implemented. 
o Cash receipts: Recommendation implemented. 
o Disbursements cycle: See Significant Deficiency 2016-01. 
o Payroll cycle: See Significant Deficiency 2016-01. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES 

2016-01 Super-User Rights 

Criteria: A system super-user is an individual who has full access over the City's financial system 
including all modules and all functions. This type of access should be limited to as few people as 
possible. If possible, super-user rights should be removed from Finance Division staff completely. 

Condition: During the fiscal year 2014-15 audit, we found the following control deficiencies. 
During the current year audit, we followed up on their status and noted that they have not been 
mitigated. 

• Disbursements cycle: the current super-user and two accounting staff have access to the 
accounts payable module and vendor database. They also have access to disbursement blank 
check stock and 1099 forms. In addition, the Financial Services Manager verifies payment 
requests with the supporting documents and the Administrative Services Director reviews the 
final AP check register. 

• Payroll cycle: the current super-user and two accounting staff have access to the payroll 
module and human resources database. They also have access to payroll blank check stock 
and unclaimed paychecks. In addition, the Financial Services Manager reviews the 
calculated check register prior to payment and the Administrative Services Director reviews 
the final payroll check register. 

Cause: Due to the small size of City staff, the City feels that certain duties cannot be further 
segregated. 

Potential Effect: These conditions do not permit for good checks and balances to be performed by 
multiple employees. 

Recommendation: The City should review the necessity of granting any employee the super-user 
rights to the financial system. For any module within the financial system that these employees do 
not need to edit, their access should be limited to read-only. 

Current Status: Access has been revised with the following user groups: Admin, Admin only, 
Accounting, and Reporting. The Financial Services Manager is the only member of "Admin", which 
has process and administrative access. The Administrative Services Director is the only member of 
"Admin only", which has administrative access, but no processing rights. "Accounting" members are 
the Accountant and Accounting Assistant whose access is limited to process only. The "Reporting" 
group is made up of non-finance staff who have the ability to only run and edit reports. Staff feels 
that these changes segregate access as much as possible at this time. 

In addition, per auditor recommendations, the City has implemented a process to monitor voucher and 
check numbers, as well processes for random review of Payroll and Accounts Payable validity. 

Recommendation implemented. 

2016-02 Controls over Cash Receipts Process 

Criteria: Good internal controls require that employees with access to the City's assets not have 
access to the City's accounting records for the same assets. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES 

Condition: In our fiscal year 2014-15 audit, we noted the following significant deficiency. Details 
of this deficiency are listed further on in this section. This deficiency has not been mitigated in 
current year: 

• 2015-02 Controls over Cash Receipts Process 

Cause: Our Memorandum on Internal Control and Required Communication for fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2015 was issued in March 2016. Although an action plan was drafted by City staff by June 
2016 to address our recommendations, the City did not have enough time to implement the plan by 
the end of the fiscal year. 

Potential Effect: As a result, we consider the above deficiencies to be significant deficiencies in 
current year. 

Recommendation: The City should implement our recommendation as soon as possible. 

Current Status: Consistent with the auditor's recommendations on 2015-02, checks are immediately 
endorsed when received by front desk staff, exceptions in ActiveNet are periodically reviewed, and 
processes for the handling of Accounts Receivable and the review of Cash Receipting have been 
established. 

Recommendation implemented. 

2016-03 Policy for the Controls of Receipts at Senior Transportation Program 

Criteria: The following are some of the essential procedures in maintaining good internal controls in 
a cash collection site: 

• Procedures should be established for handling cash collection, including a formal record 

keeping system to track service provides versus revenue received. 

• Cash receipts collected should be processed on a timely basis. 
• All complaints in regards to customer accounts should be deferred to an employee who is not 

involved with processing cash receipts. 
• Duties of the cash collection cycle should be segregated. 

Condition: During our audit, we performed a cash collection site visit at the Senior Transportation 
Program. We found the following: 

• There does not appear to be any formal procedures in place for the cash collection process. 

• While some customers pay in advance by sending in payments or paying in the City's office, 
others pay the drivers directly at pick up. When the fares are directly given to the drivers, the 
drivers turn in the money and records to the Transportation Program Manager at the end of 
their shifts for reconciliation. 

• While cash received are stored securely, it is given to the Parks, Trails & Recreation 
Department only on a semi-monthly basis. 

• Customer complaints are handled by the Transportation Program Manager, who takes in 
payments, processes the receipts, and keeps track of customer accounts. 

• As of June 2016, some customer accounts carried credit (i.e. negative) balances. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES 

Cause: During fiscal year 2016, the City took in $23,192 in riders' fare for this program, while 
incurring expenditures of $161,000. Due to the small amount ofrevenue involved, the City does not 
have formal procedures to address the cash collection practice of this program. In addition, due to 
lack of staff in this program, the City believes that segregation of duties may not be feasible. 

Recommendation: The City should establish formal procedures to address cash collection of this 
program. In these new procedures, the City needs to maintain a tracking system to ensure that all 
services provided are paid for. For example, the City can use a punch card or voucher system in 
which riders are required to pay the fare in advance. This will eliminate the risk of cash collected 
during the ride but not reported to the City, as well as negative balances in customers' accounts. In 
addition, cash receipts collected should also be submitted to the Parks, Trails & Recreation 
Department at least weekly. There should also be a second employee who reviews the cash 
reconciliation performed by the Transportation Program Manager. This second employee, who has 
no access to the customer accounts, should also be responsible for handling customer complaints. 

Current Status: The Financial Services Manager worked with the Transportation Program Manager 
and the Parks, Trails and Recreation Director to develop and implement procedures addressing each 
of the conditions identified above. Procedures with strong internal controls are now in place and 
continue to be monitored. 

Recommendation implemented. 

2015-02 Controls over Cash Receipts Process 

Criteria: Good internal control dictates that one employee should not have access to records used to 
maintain related assets. Good internal control further dictates that another employee should be 
involved in the records or assets so that they provide good check and balance. In a cash receipt cycle, 
the following controls should be maintained: 

• Endorsement of checks for deposit should be performed immediately upon receipt. 

• Voiding of cash receipts should be performed or approved by someone who does not have 
access to cash receipts. 

• Daily cash receipt reconciliations should be reviewed by an employee other than the preparer. 

• A policy should be established to provide guidelines as to when and how uncollected 
receivables should be written off. 

Condition: During our audit, we noted the following conditions in the City's cash receipts cycle: 
• One employee in the City is responsible for endorsing all checks received, approving voided 

receipts, reconciling cash receipts to the City's system, preparing and making bank deposits, 
as well as reconciling the bank accounts to the City's records. While the bank reconciliations 
are reviewed by the Financial Services Manager, none of this employee's other duties 
mentioned above are reviewed by another employee. 

• At the cash collection site of the Parks and Recreation Department, the cashiers can void 
receipts in the E-Trac software without approval by a second employee. 

• The City does not have a policy to provide guidance for the treatment of uncollected 

accounts. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES 

Cause: Due to the small size of City staff, the City feels that certain duties cannot be further 
segregated. For the Parks and Recreation Department cash collection site, it was not part of the City's 
procedures to require approval for the voiding of cash receipts. In addition, since the City does not 
write off any accounts receivable, no formal policy has been implemented for accounts write off. 

Potential Effect: Without the involvement of a second employee reviewing cash collections, there is 
a potential risk that collections may be intercepted. Without a proper audit trail and review of the 
voided transactions, the City is exposed to the risk of cash receipts interception. Without a set policy 
that addresses the treatment of the uncollectible, fund balance can be overstated. Receivables that 
have been outstanding for a long time can also be an indication of undetected cash receipts 
interception. 

Recommendation: We recommend the following: 
• Checks received by front desk staff should be immediately endorsed with City's stamp upon 

receipt. 
• The person who reconciles cash receipts should not also have the ability to void receipts in 

the system. In addition, an employee, who does not have access to cash receipts, should 
perform or review the voiding of cash receipt transactions. 

• Daily cash receipt reconciliations should be reviewed by a second employee. The review 
should be physically indicated via sign off on the reconciliation. 

• Once a deposit is made, an employee who did not make or prepare the deposit should match 
the amount deposited to the bank to the amount shown on the cash reconciliation previously 
reviewed by a second employee. 

• A policy should be created to address the treatment ofreceivables over ninety days. 

Current Year Status: See Significant Deficiency 2016-02. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR OTHER MATTERS 

2016-04 Physical Evidence of Review 

Criteria: The Quarterly Financial Report should be reviewed consistently and timely by someone 
other than the staff that prepared the report. To maintain an audit trail of such review, physical 
documentation, such as a signature and date, of the preparer and reviewer should be indicated on such 
reports. 

Condition: During our review of the City's March 31, 2016 Quarterly Financial Report we noted 
that there was no physical evidence indicating a review of the Report had taken place. 

Cause: The City was unaware that such control should be in place. 

Potential Effect: Without physical trial of a review, the City cannot monitor if such control activity 
has occurred. As a result, there is an increased risk of error, improper accounting treatments, and 
potential fraud. 

Recommendation: We recommend the City implement procedures to require the reviewer to initial 
and date the Report when a review takes place. 

Current Status: Starting with the City's June 30, 2016 Quarterly Financial Report, the 
Administrative Services Director reviews, initials and dates each report before it is submitted for 
inclusion in the Council packet. This practice remains in place. 

Recommendation implemented. 

2015-05 Compliance with Administrative Regulations 

Criteria: Per City Administrative Regulations, Number 601.1, "No request for goods, supplies, 
equipment, or services shall be submitted by a Department Head nor shall the Purchasing Agent 
process either a purchase order or a request for payment unless there is an encumbered appropriation 
in the fund account against which said purchase is to be charged." However, under the same section, 
there is a provision for "Procedure for Requesting Payment, Other Than by Purchase Order." 

Condition: The above section of the City's Administrative Regulations appears to have conflicting 
information. In practice, the City does not use purchase orders. 

Cause: The City is understaffed and believes that it has found more efficient ways to obtain the 
proper approvals of disbursements from various departments without using purchase orders. 

Potential Effect: Written policies are meant to provide guidance for City staff. Conflicting 
information in a policy defeats that purpose. 

Recommendation: We recommend that City Council clarify their Administrative Regulations. The 
Regulations should either be followed or updated to reflect the City's current practice. If purchase 
orders are not being used, the City should find an alternative procedure to ensure that departments 
only make financial commitments to the extent that the adopted budget permits. 

Current Year Status: Recommendation implemented. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR OTHER MATTERS 

2015-06 Review of Deposits Payable Balances and Accounts 

Criteria: To ensure that the refundable deposits balance in the City's books is accurate, details of 
deposits should be reviewed on a regular basis. Additionally, refunds of customer deposits should be 
reviewed by another employee before a check is issued. Documentation of such review and approval 
should be noted on the Payment Request Form. 

Condition: During our review of refundable deposits, we noted two accounts with debit (negative) 
balances of $2,500 each. Upon further inquiry with City staff, it was noted that for one of the debit 
balances, the City recorded a refund of customer deposit to the wrong account. For the other debit 
balance, City staff erroneously entered the refund twice. The original refund of this account was 
issued without approval by a second employee. 

Cause: The errors are due to staff oversight. The first debit balance mentioned above was due to an 
oversight of City staff in recording the customer deposit refund. For the second debt balance, 
customer deposits are recorded and tracked in the general ledger by account number, which is specific 
to each customer. A customer may have multiple account numbers applicable to deposits for various 
projects. Similarly, in the City's vendor database, customers are set up under various Vendor ID 
numbers, but coded under one account number. The error occurred when the City refunded a 
customer deposit twice due to the customer's account number being applied to the same vendor using 
two different vendor IDs. 

The existent of debit balances of deposits is due to the fact that the City does not conduct periodic 
review of the deposits detail. 

Potential Effect: Without periodic review of the account detail and proper approval of refunds, 
error and mistakes may not be identified timely. 

Recommendation: We recommend the City review its refundable deposits accounts and vendor 
database to condense the record of customer deposits into one system with the same ID for each 
customer. Additionally, the City should assign an employee to approve requests before issuing 
refunds of customer deposits. 

Current Year Status: This continues to be an area in which more work is needed. Staff anticipates 
that in FY18 Planning, Engineering, and Finance will be able to coordinate on this project in order to 
clean-up old balances and have a process to regularly review these accounts going forward. 

2015-07 Capitalization Policy 

Criteria: The City should have a formal capitalization policy in place that clearly describes 
capitalization practices including capitalization thresholds for assets and useful lives of assets. 

Condition: The City's current practice is to capitalize assets that are over $5,000 and with five or 
more years of useful lives. However, no formal policy is in place. 

Cause: The City was unaware that a formal policy should be in place. 

Potential Effect: Without written procedures, the current practice of the City is passed along among 
staff verbally. If there is a staff turnover, information may not be retained. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR OTHER MATTERS 

Recommendation: We recommend the City adopt a formal capitalization policy which clearly 
describes capitalization practices including capitalization thresholds for assets and useful lives of 
assets. 

Current Year Status: Staff has drafted a Capitalization Policy that will be adopted with the next 
update to the Administrative Regulations. 

Recommendation implemented. 

2015-08 Information System Review 

We conducted an Information Systems Review with our audit which encompassed the financial 
information system and the network environment that houses it. Internal controls that are present in 
the overall network environment have become more important and relevant to understanding the 
internal controls over the financial system. We believe Information System controls must be 
continuously improved and enhanced to stay ahead of the ever increasing sophistication of hackers 
and criminals. 

Currently, there are no Information Systems standards to which local governments are required to 
conform. Indeed there are a wide variety of informal guidelines and suggested controls from many 
different organizations which local governments can use to implement appropriate controls to ensure 
adequate security over information technology. A voluntary risk-based Cybersecurity Framework has 
been developed by the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) per Presidential 
Executive Order 13636 (12 FEB 2013). The Framework for Improving Critical Infrastructure 
Cybersecurity version 1.0 (12 FEB 2014) offers a number of appropriate standards. Our Information 
Systems auditors have reviewed the voluntary framework and concluded that the risk management 
framework developed by NIST for the Federal Information Security Management Act (FISMA) is the 
most appropriate for local govemments1• The NIST risk management framework represents the 
minimum security requirements for federal government agencies and recommends these controls for 
private industry and state and local governments. 

While reviewing the City's information system, we noted a few areas that could be improved. A 
summary of these recommendations which we believe are "best practices" are as follows: 

Audit/Event Logging 

The City does not appear to have audit logs on the financial application server, such that any change, 
addition or deletion of user accounts within the application are tracked and monitored. This may be 
due to a limitation of the software; however, this is a vital control. The City should have audit/event 
logs of any addition, deletion or change in financial application user accounts and that log should be 
monitored by someone without the rights to effect such changes. In addition, any administrative 
access such as upgrades or application modifications by IT personnel, outside consultants or vendors 
should also be logged and reviewed.2 The City should contact Abila support to determine if audit 
logging is possible or if it can be added on. 

1 "State, local, and tribal governments, as well as private sector organizations are encouraged to consider using these guidelines, 
as appropriate." NIST SP 800-37 Rev 1pg11 
2 For more information on Audit/Event log management see NIST SP 800-92 Guide to Computer Security Log Management. 
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Patch and Vulnerability Management 

Our scans indicate the City's information systems have numerous vulnerabilities, which may be due 
in part from a lack of patch management, vulnerability scanning, or configuration management. 
While these vulnerabilities do not directly affect the financial reporting of the City, they do present an 
unnecessary risk to the City's information systems. The City should develop a patch and 
vulnerability management program. "Patch and vulnerability management is a security practice 
designed to proactively prevent the exploitation of IT vulnerabilities that exist within an organization. 
The expected result is to reduce the time and money spent dealing with vulnerabilities and 
exploitation of those vulnerabilities. Proactively managing vulnerabilities of systems will reduce or 
eliminate the potential for exploitation and involve considerably less time and effort than responding 
after exploitation has occurred."3 For guidance on implementing effective patch and vulnerability 
management see NIST SP 800-40 Ver. 2 Creating and Patch and Vulnerability Management 
Program. 

Password Management on the Financial Application 

The City does not enforce regular password changes or require the use of complex passwords for 
users on the financial application. There should be a written policy for the regular changing of 
financial system account passwords and the use of complex passwords for users. An automatic 
enforcement of this policy would be optimum. There should be enforced password complexity for 
the financial system to reduce the risks of easy guessing and brute force attacks against the 
passwords. Required use of unique alpha numeric and special character combinations along with a 
password length of at least 8 characters is optimum. There should be a policy that requires a limit on 
repeating financial system account passwords. This will stop users from circumventing password 
change controls. An automatic enforcement of this policy would be optimum. Users should not share 
passwords with other users nor use password easily guessed by other users. 

Session Locks 

The City does not have session locks turned on for the financial application or the workstation 
operating systems. A session lock is a temporary lockout of the operating system or financial 
application when a user stops work and typically moves away from the immediate physical vicinity of 
the computer. Generally, employees may leave their workstation for lunch or break and not log off or 
log out of the application. This leaves the operating system or financial application open and 
available to any passerby. Any person with physical access would be able to perform any tasks the 
absent user has privileges or rights to do. At the very least workstations should be set to lock out the 
workstation after a period of inactivity. Best practice would be to have both the operating system and 
financial application have lockouts after a period of inactivity. 

Current Year Status: The Administrative Services Director and the Financial Services Manager 
continue to work on addressing the conditions identified above. 

3 NIST SP 800-40 Ver. 2 Creating a Patch and Vulnerability Management Program 
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REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS 

To the City Council of 
the City of Lafayette, California 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Lafayette for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
Professional standards require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit 
under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Accounting Policies 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new 
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year, 
except as follows: 

The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements became effective, 
but did not have a material effect on the financial statements: 

GASB 73-

GASB74-

GASB 77-

GASB 80-

GASB82-

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets 
That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and 
Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68 

Financial Reporting for Post-employment Benefit Plans Other Than 
Pension Plans 

Tax Abatement Disclosures 

Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units-an amendment 
of GASB Statement No. 14 

Pension Issues-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, 
and No. 73 

Unusual Transactions, Controversial or Emerging Areas 

We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the 
proper period. 

Accountancy Corporation 

3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215 

Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 17 

T 925.930.0902 

F 925.930.0135 

e maze@mazeassociates.com 

w mazeassociates.com 
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Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate( s) affecting the City's financial statements 
was (were): 

• Management's estimate of the depreciation: is based on useful lives determined by management. 
These lives have been determined by management based on the expected useful life of assets as 
disclosed in Note 1 to the fmancial statements. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions 
used to develop the depreciation estimate and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the 
basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

• Estimated Fair Value of Investments: As of June 30, 2017, cash and investments were measured 
by fair value. Fair value is essentially market pricing in effect as of June 30, 2017. These fair 
values are not required to be adjusted for changes in general market conditions occurring 
subsequent to June 30, 2017. 

Disclosures 

The :financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 

Co"ected and Unco"ected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. Management has corrected all/certain such misstatements. Jn addition, none of the 
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either 
individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit's financial statements taken as a whole. 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely uncorrected misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. We have no such misstatements to report to the City Council. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a fmancial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the fmancial 
statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in a management 
representation letter dated November 15, 2017. 
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Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

Jn some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to the City's financial statements or a determination of the type of 
auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the 
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our 
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City's auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 

Other Information Accompanying the Financial Statements 

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information that accompanies and 
supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management 
regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the required supplementary information 
and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the required supplementary information. 

We were engaged to report on the supplementary information which accompany the financial statements, 
]:)ut are not required supplementary information. With respect to this supplementary information, we made 
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the 
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the 
information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared 
and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the fmancial statements themselves. 

We were not engaged to report on the Introductory and Statistical Sections which accompany the financial 
statements, but are not required supplementary information. Such information has not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic fmancial statements, and accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

****** 
This information is intended solely for the use of City Council and management and is not intended to be, 
and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

/Wla~e.. l ~Mo~ 
Pleasant Hill, California 
November 15, 2017 
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December 11, 2017 
 
To:  Lafayette City Council 
From:  Tracy Robinson, Administrative Services Director 
RE:  Fiscal Year 2016‐17 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
 

 
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report  (CAFR) of the City of Lafayette for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2017  is submitted  in compliance with Section 25253 of the Government Code 
of  the  State of California and as prescribed by  the Government Accounting  Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement 34.   
 

This report was prepared by the City of Lafayette Finance Department and the responsibility for 
the accuracy of  the data and  the completeness and  fairness of  the presentation,  including all 
disclosures, rests with the City.  To the best of our knowledge, the data included in the report is 
accurate  in all material  respects,  and  is  reported  in a manner designed  to present  fairly  the 
financial  position  and  results  of  operations  of  the  various  funds  of  the  City.   All  disclosures 
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City’s  financial activities have 
been included. 
 

While it is theoretically possible to design and implement controls that are virtually foolproof, it 
would be extremely costly to do so.   It  is difficult to  justify paying more  for controls than the 
value of the benefits that they provide, therefore, entities must, as a practical matter, accept 
less‐than‐perfect  controls.   Thus,  one  inherent  limitation  of  internal  control  is  that  a  certain 
degree  of  risk will  always  be  unavoidable  because  of  cost/benefit  considerations.   Another 
challenge arises from the unique role that management plays in internal control.  Managers are 
almost always  in a position  to circumvent any controls  they put  in place.  A  second  inherent 
limitation of  internal control  is the risk of management override.  Lastly, many control‐related 
procedures  depend  on  employees  serving  as  checks  and  balances  on  one  another.   The 
effectiveness  of  such  procedures  can be  frustrated  if  employees  conspire  to  circumvent  the 
control.  A third inherent limitation of internal control is the risk of collusion.   
 
The City of Lafayette has implemented internal controls to the extent possible within budgetary 
constraints.     The City  is consistently  looking for ways to augment such controls using current 
staffing,  including  but  not  limited  to  training,  physical  audits  by management,  separation  of 
duties and standardized documentation to the extent possible. 
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Maze  &  Associates  have  issued  an  unqualified  (“clean”)  opinion  on  the  City  of  Lafayette’s 
financial  statements  for  the  year ended  June 30, 2017.   The  independent auditor’s  report  is 
included with this report.  
 

The  CAFR  represents  the  culmination  of  all  budgeting  and  accounting  activities  of  the  City 
during  FY  2016‐17.    The Management Discussion  and Analysis which  is  also  included  in  this 
report  provides  a  narrative  introduction,  overview  and  analysis  of  the  basic  financial 
statements.    The  MD&A  complements  this  letter  of  transmittal  and  should  be  read  in 
conjunction with it. 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
 

Incorporated  in 1968, Lafayette  is  located  in Contra Costa County, one of the nine counties of 
the San Francisco Bay Area.  Located on 15 square miles, Lafayette is noted for its high quality 
of life with top rated schools, low crime rate, small town downtown, clean air, mild climate and 
oak tree‐studded hills. Located between Berkeley and Walnut Creek, Lafayette has its own Bay 
Area Rapid Transit station (BART) and is only a 25 minute BART ride from San Francisco. 
 

The  City’s  2015  population  reported  by  the  State  of  California  Department  of  Finance was 
25,041.   The City  is primarily a residential community with commercial  (retail and office) and 
light industrial enterprises, as well as local governmental offices.   
 

Lafayette’s commercial district lies in the center of the community and offers a wide variety of 
services for residents, in addition to boutique shopping and fine dining.  The annual Art & Wine 
Festival attracts as many as 80,000 visitors to the City each year in September.   
 

The City operates under the Council‐Manager form of government, and  is governed by a five‐
member Council elected at large, serving staggered four‐year terms.  Council elections are held 
in November of even numbered  years.   The Mayor  is elected by  the Council members  from 
within  their  ranks  to serve  rotating one‐year  terms.   The City Manager and City Attorney are 
appointed  by  the  City  Council.    The  City  Manager  appoints  all  Department  Directors  and 
through them, all other employees of the City.  
 

Lafayette  is  a  limited  service  city  and  contracts with Contra Costa County  for police,  library, 
animal control, and building services.  Other examples of services delivered within the City that 
are provided by separate agencies are: fire service provided by the Contra Costa Consolidated 
Fire  District, water  service  by  East  Bay Municipal  Utility  District,  and  sewer  service  by  the 
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District.  The Lafayette School District operates the 4 elementary 
schools  and one middle  school within  the  city boundary.  The high  school  is  in  the Acalanes 
Unified  School District, which  also  serves  the  communities  of  Canyon, Moraga, Orinda,  and 
portions of Walnut Creek. As a result, the City has only one component unit and no other legal 
entities for which it is financially or legally responsible.  
 

The City's fiscal year runs from July 1 through June 30. Each year, the Administrative Services 
Director prepares two budgets ‐‐ the Proposed Budget, which is approved in June, and the Final 
Budget, which is approved in December. The budget process is as follows:  
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 In January, the City Council meets to set the goals and priorities for the upcoming fiscal 
year.  

 In February and March,  the department heads prepare  their preliminary budgets and 
incorporate requests from commissions and committees.  

 In mid‐March,  each  department  head meets  with  the  City Manager,  Administrative 
Services Director and Finance Manager to review the budget requests.  

 In mid‐April, the Administrative Services Director presents the Proposed Budget to the 
Finance Committee.  

 At the end of May, the Proposed Budget is introduced at a regular City Council meeting.  

 The City Council holds a special budget workshop meeting, usually during the first week 
in June. At this meeting, the public is invited to comment on the budget and the Council 
makes a number of important policy decisions regarding the budget.  

 The budget and any  changes made  to  it during  the budget workshop are adopted by 
resolution at the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.  

 After final figures for the prior fiscal year have been audited, usually in late October, the 
Administrative  Services  Director  begins  work  on  the  Final  Budget.  The  Final  Budget 
incorporates  actual  expenses  and  revenues  from  the  prior  fiscal  year,  as well  as  any 
changes  made  by  the  City  Council  to  the  Proposed  Budget.  If  other  programs  or 
expenditures are anticipated, these items are incorporated into the Final Budget as well.  

 The City Council reviews the Final Budget at a regularly scheduled meeting in December, 
and adopts the Final Budget by resolution.  

This annual budget serves as the foundation for Lafayette’s financial planning and control.  The 
budget  is  prepared  by  fund,  function  and  department.    Department  heads  may  transfer 
resources within  a  department  as  they  see  fit.    The  City  Council must  approve  changes  to 
established levels of service, changes in the number of regular positions as defined by the City's 
adopted  Personnel  Rules,  increases  in  the  total  amount  allocated  for  each  program,  and 
purchases of  capital  items which exceed $10,000  in value and which are not  itemized  in  the 
Capital Outlay accounts.  The City Manager can approve all other modifications not specifically 
reserved for the City Council.  
 

The  City  continues  to  maintain  reserves  well  above  best  practice  recommendations  and 
continues  its philosophy of  conservative  retirement programs, which do not  include defined 
benefit plans.   
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE & COMPENSATION 
 

The City employs 40.12 FTEs regular employees as well as a number of temporary and seasonal 
employees.    Most  of  the  senior  management  team  is  experienced  and  long‐tenured: 
 

Steven Falk  City Manager  27 years 
Tracy Robinson  Administrative Services Director  17 years 
Tony Coe  City Engineer  23 years 
Jonathan Katayanagi  Parks & Recreation Director    1 year 
Mike Moran  Public Works Director    3 years 
Joanne Robbins  City Clerk  23 years 
Niroop Srivatsa  Planning & Building Director  23 years 
Jennifer Wakeman  Financial Services Manager    4 years 
Eric Christensen  Chief of Police, County (contract)    6 years 
Mala Subramanian  City Attorney, BB&K (contract)    10 years 
 

Unlike most public sector organizations, the City of Lafayette does not participate in a defined 
benefit  retirement  program.    Rather,  City  employees  have  traditional  defined  contribution 
programs  (401  and  457  plans).    In  addition,  the  City  has  fully  funded  the  retiree medical 
program; therefore, there are no unfunded liabilities for retirement benefits. 
 

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 
 

Local Economy 
 

Lafayette is an affluent suburb of a major metropolitan area and its proximity to a public transit 
station  (BART) makes  it  convenient  for  commuters.    In  addition,  the  semi‐rural  setting,  low 
crime rate and excellent schools make the city attractive to families.   
 

The residents are generally highly educated, with over 74% having bachelor’s degrees or higher 
and almost 31% hold graduate or professional degrees.  Unemployment is also very low.  As of 
September 2017, unemployment  in Lafayette was 2.1% compared to 3.9% for the County and 
5.1% for the state. The median household income is $137,895, which compares to $61,818 for 
the State.  The median sales price of homes in Lafayette as of November 2017 was $1,346,000 
Homeownership rates are also very high, at 75%, as compared to a state average of 56%. 
 

All of these factors bode well for Lafayette’s major sources of revenue.  Most primary sources 
of revenue are at all‐time highs except for sales tax which dipped slightly due to the unwinding 
of  the  State’s  “triple  flip”.    Also,  after  several  years  of  dormancy  due  to  a  recession, 
development has started again and since 2008 an average of approximately 43 units per year 
will have been added to Lafayette’s housing stock by 2018.   This additional housing  includes a 
combination of single family homes, multi‐family condominiums, townhouses and apartments, 
second units and assisted living facilities.   
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Major Revenue Trends (in 000s)  

 
 

Long Term Financial Planning & Major Initiatives 
 

As of June 30, 2017, the City of Lafayette’s financial condition remains sound.   An  indicator of 
financial  condition  is  the  level of  fund balances, both  reserved  and unreserved,  in  the City’s 
General Fund.  In 2015, the City Council set a policy of retaining a minimum of 60% of the year’s 
General  Fund  operating  expenditures  as  a  reserve.   As  of  June  30,  2017,  $9.98M  or  73%  is 
designated for this purpose.   This represents a slight decrease over the prior year primarily to 
the acquisition of a master lease and renovations for new Police Offices. 
 

The City uses a multi‐year financial planning process which includes estimates of future revenue 
and operating expenditure growth, as well as capital needs  to be  financed  from  the General 
Fund  over  the  next  five  years.    The  five‐year  forecast  shows  that  the  City  will  be  able  to 
maintain its reserve requirement and balance its budget for the next five years while preserving 
current services. 
 

Additional  reserves  against  the  General  Fund  include  various  “sinking  funds”  for  future 
operating  costs  such  as  vehicle  replacements,  vacation  accruals,  retiree  healthcare,  capital 
expenditures and other monies that have been earmarked for specific purposes by the Council.  
This allows the City to save money over time for significant capital acquisitions and, therefore, 
smooth the funding path. 
 

The City of  Lafayette maintains a  five‐year Capital  Improvement Program which  serves as  its 
planning document to ensure that its infrastructure is well maintained.  Under the guidance of 
the  Capital  Projects  Assessment  Committee,  the  City  prioritizes  roads  for maintenance  and 
reconstruction.  Over the course of the last 15 years, the City has been able to whittle what was 
once  a  $23M  failed  road  backlog  down  to  less  than  $2M.   During  that  time,  the  City  has 
contributed over $7M in General Fund reserves to the Pavement Management Program.  These 
funds, along with  franchise  impact  fees, grants, gas  tax and Measure  J  regional money have 
allowed  the  City  to  reconstruct many  of  the  failed  residential  roads.   The  FY2017‐18  capital 
program anticipates $3.3M  in road‐related projects.  The City estimates that by the end of FY 
2018‐19,  the entire backlog will have been substantially reduced.  This will relieve one of  the 
largest ongoing burdens on the General Fund over the last 20 years. 
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Property Tax 3,494 3,384 3,458 3,524 3,581 3,596 3,654 3,922 4,354 4,775 5,101

Sales Tax 2,622 2,645 2,394 2,262 2,218 2,561 2,667 2,757 2,877 3,194 3,008

Vehicle License  Fee 1,879 1,950 2,036 2,090 2,149 2,035 2,058 2,176 2,344 2,523 2,706

Franchise Fees 1,094 1,140 1,296 1,539 1,598 1,579 1,622 1,665 1,836 2,165 2,221
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In the next fiscal year, the City must complete the relocation of  its Police services to the new 
building that was acquired  last year.   The total cost of relocation  including the cost of buying 
the master lease is expected to be $2.7M.  The City’s current reserves are enough to cover this 
cost and still remain only slightly below the 60% General Fund reserve target.  The City has an 
option  to  purchase  this  facility  in  the  next  five  years  for  approximately  $1.5M.    The  option 
extends for at  least 15 years with set price escalators each year.   Future budgets will begin to 
accrue the money for that contingency so as not to incur a large drain on cash at the time the 
purchase occurs. 
 

Relevant Financial Policies 
 

The  City  has  a  conservative  investment  policy which  emphasizes  safety  and  preservation  of 
capital over yields.   The City had previously  invested all  free  cash  in  the State of California’s 
pooled fund, the Local Agency  Investment Fund (LAIF). However, due to the very  low  interest 
rates returned by that fund, the City recently revised its portfolio allocations to take advantage 
of  additional  securities  that  boost  earnings  while  still  maintaining  safety  and  liquidity.  In 
addition  to  maintaining  a  balance  with  LAIF,  the  current  portfolio  is  invested  in  laddered 
certificates of deposit, the CalTrust pooled fund, and select, highly‐rated corporate notes.   
 

Several  years  ago,  the  Council  recognized  that  it  may  have  a  significant  shortfall  in  the 
Stormwater Pollution Fund in the next ten years given the inability to raise permit fees while at 
the same  time  facing  increased costs and program mandates.   They decided  to begin setting 
aside money  in a special sinking fund for this purpose.   This fund will grow to $1.1M by 2023, 
thus  allowing  this  program  to more  smoothly  bridge  expected  deficits  for  a  period  of  time.  
Similarly, the Council also moved to increase the Insurance Reserve Fund by $50K annually for 5 
years in order to bring that reserve to a total of $500K, which equals the deductible required for 
catastrophic losses. 
 

With an increase of $400K over the annual capital contribution of $1M annually, the City will be 
able to finish the backlog of road repairs over the next 2 years.  The City expects to be able to 
maintain all public roads going forward using established revenue sources.   
 
Although the City’s reserve will dip to a low of 8.9M in FY17‐18 which is slightly below the 60% 
target,  it will  again  start  to  increase each  year  after  again projected  to  reach over $10M by 
FY21‐22. 
 

It  is the Council’s policy to adopt a balanced budget each year with conservative estimates of 
revenue  and  expenses.      For  FY17‐18,  the  5‐year  forecast  uses  revenue  growth  of  2%  and 
expense growth of 4% which are neither overly optimistic nor pessimistic.  It has been the City’s 
experience  that at  the end of  the  year,  favorable variances,  in both  revenues and expenses, 
allow the City to continue to build the General Fund reserve, as well as, transfer resources to 
much needed capital projects. 
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AWARDS 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded 
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Lafayette for its 
comprehensive  annual  report  for  the  fiscal  year ended  June 30, 2016.    This was  the  second 
straight  year  that  the  City  of  Lafayette  has  achieved  this  prestigious  award.    In  order  to  be 
awarded  a  Certificate  of  Achievement,  a  government must  publish  an  easily  readable  and 
efficiently  organized  comprehensive  annual  financial  report.    This  report must  satisfy  both 
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.   
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our current 
comprehensive  annual  financial  report  continues  to  meet  the  Certificate  of  Achievement 
Program’s  requirements and we are  submitting  it  to  the GFOA  to determine  its eligibility  for 
another certificate. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 

The  preparation  and  development  of  this  report would  not  have  been  possible without  the 
special  efforts  of  the  entire  Finance  Department,  and most  notably,  the  Financial  Services 
Manager,  Jennifer  Wakeman.  We  would  like  to  take  this  opportunity  to  compliment  and 
express our gratitude to all those staff members of the City and our independent auditing firm 
who were associated with the preparation of this report. 
 

In closing, without  the continued  leadership and support of  the City Council,  it would not be 
possible  to  conduct  the  financial  operations  of  the  City  in  the  responsible  and  transparent 
manner in which they have been managed. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Members of the City Council of the 
City of Lafayette 
Lafayette, California 

Report on Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lafayette, 
California, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Accountancy Corporation 

3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215 

Pleasant Hill , CA 94523 1 

T 925.930.0902 

F 925.930.0135 

e maze@mazeassociates.com 

w mazeassociates.com 



Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective fmancial position of the governmental activities, business type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in 
fmancial position and,· where applicable cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's 
Discussion and Analysis and other Required Supplementary Information as listed in the table of contents 
is to be presented to supplement the basic fmancial statements. Such information, although not a part of 
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of fmancial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic fmancial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because 
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City's basic fmancial statements as a whole. The Introducto:ry Section, Supplemental 
Information, and Statistical Section as listed in the Table of Contents are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic fmancial statements. 

The Supplemental Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
fmancial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Supplemental Information is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The Introducto:ry and Statistical Sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 15, 
2107, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
November 15, 2017 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

The management staff of the City of Lafayette (City), offers readers of the City's financial statements 
this narrative overview and analysis of City financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
To obtain a complete understanding of the City's financial condition, this document should be read in 
conjunction with the accompanying Transmittal Letter, Basic Financial Statements, and other 
information. 

Financial Highlights 

• The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by 
$134,951,826 (net position). Of this amount, $26,860,110 represents unrestricted net position, 
which may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

• The City's total net position increased by $2,649,287 compared to the net position at the end of 
last fiscal year. The unrestricted portion of the City's net position increased by $1,631,216 
compared to the unrestricted portion at the end of last fiscal year. 

• At the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined fund 
balances of $31,221,598, a decrease of $2,277,474 in comparison with the prior year. Of the 
governmental funds reported combined fund balances, $9,120,009 (approximately 29% of the 
combined fund balance) is available for spending at the City's discretion (unassigned fund 
balance). 

• A the end of the current fiscal year, unrestricted fund balance (the total of the committed, 
assigned, and unassigned components of fund balance) for the general fund was $13,019,682, or 
approximately 102% of total general fund expenditures. 

• The City's total outstanding long-term debt on the Statement of Net Position consists of General 
Obligation Bonds with outstanding balances of $4,835,000. 

Explanations of the key terms referenced here are provided further on in this report and within the 
context of the statements in which they are found. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The discussion and analysis presented here are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic 
financial statements. The City's basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government­
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) the notes to the financial statements. This 
report also includes supplementary information intended to furnish additional detail to support the basic 
financials statements themselves. 

Government-wide Financial Statements The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector 
business. 

The statement of net position presents financial information on all of the City's assets, liabilities, and 
deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases 
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City 
is improving or deteriorating. This statement is similar to a private sector balance sheet. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving 
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses 
are reported for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected 
taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that 
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business­
type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, 
streets, parks, and planning and community development. The business-type activities include the City's 
recreation program. 

One of the most important questions often asked about the City's finances is, "Is the City better or worse 
off as a result of the year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
report information about the City as a whole in a way that helps answer this question. 

The government-wide fmancial statements can be found on pages 19-21 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control 
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state 
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with fmance-related 
legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, 
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City's basic 
services are reported here, including general government, public safety, streets, parks, and planning and 
community development. These activities are fmanced by sales taxes, property taxes, vehicle license 
fees, franchise fees, and vehicular fmes. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, 
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, 
as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information 
may be useful in assessing a government's near-term fmancing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide fmancial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By 
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing 
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison 
between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
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CITY OF LAP A YETTE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

The City maintains twenty-one individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the capital project funds, the debt service fund, the 
public facilities fund, and the streets and signals fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data 
from the other remaining governmental funds are combined into a single aggregated presentation. 
Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funs is provided in the form of combining 
statements in the combining and individual fund statements and schedules section of this report. 

The twenty-one funds (with corresponding fund numbers in parentheses) are grouped as follows: 

• General Fund includes the General Fund (11), Shared Equity (30), Library Operations (37), and 
Insurance (76). 

• Parking Programs Fund includes only Parking Programs (32). 

• Public Facilities Fund includes only Public Facilities (16). 

• Streets & Signals Fund includes only Streets & Signals (14). 

• Capital Projects Funds includes Parks Facilities (12), Parkland Acquisition (17), City Offices 
(75), and Road and Drain Improvement (79). 

• Debt Service Fund includes only General Obligation Bonds (78). 

• Other Governmental Funds include: Vehicle Abatement (34), Senior Transportation (36), Low 
and Moderate Income Housing (38), Gas Tax (71), Measure J Return to Source (72), 
Supplemental Law Enforcement (73), Street Lighting (51), Core Area Maintenance (52), and 
Storm Water Pollution (53). 

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement 
has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 24-30 of this report. 

Proprietary Funds. The City maintains one type of proprietary fund, an enterprise fund. Enterprise 
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. The City uses an enterprise fund to account for its recreation programs. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide fmancial statements, 
only in more detail. 

The basic proprietary fund fmancial statements can be fotmd on pages 32-34 of this report. 

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties 
outside of the government. Fiduciary funds are not reported in the government-wide financial statements 
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City's own programs. The 
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

The City maintains one type of fiduciary fund, a private-purpose trust fund. The Private-purpose trust 
fund is used to report resources held in trust for the Successor Agency to the (now dissolved) 
Redevelopment Agency that are used to make payments on outstanding obligations. 

The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 36-37 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is necessary to 
acquire a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
The notes to the fmancial statements can be found on pages 39-65 of this report. 

Supplemental Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report also presents required supplementary information. Provided here is a budgetary comparison 
schedule for the general fund comparing the original budget to the final budget and the final budget to 
the actual. (Pages 68) 

Statistical Section. This section presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the 
information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says 
about the City's overall financial health. (Pages 92-134) 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

The largest portion of the City's net position (77%) is the net investment in capital assets of 
$103,942,6,13. This portion reflects the investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment, 
vehicles, and infrastructure (public streets and storm drains)), less any related outstanding debt that was 
used to acquire those assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens. 
Accordingly, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in capital 
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources used to repay this debt must be 
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these 
liabilities. 

The next largest portion of the City's net position (20%) is the unrestricted portion of $26,860,110. This 
portion represents resources that are available to meet the City's ongoing obligations at the discretion of 
the City Council. The remaining balance of $4,149,103 is subject to external restrictions on how it may 
be used. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all reported categories 
of net position, for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business­
type activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. 
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CITY OF LAP A YETTE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Net Position 

Governmental activities Business-9'.2e activities Total 
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 

Assets 
Cash and investments $ 13,046,040 $ 13,891,920 $ 641,793 $ 270,877 $ 13,687,833 $ 14,162,797 

Other assets 22,410,655 22,578,271 280,266 622,421 22,690,921 23,200,692 
Capital Assets 108, 777,613 105,261,344 108,777,613 105,261,344 

Total assets 144,234,308 141,731,535 922,059 893,298 145, 156,367 142,624,833 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable & 

accrued liabilities 2,391,122 1,090,528 30,563 21,476 2,421,685 l,ll2,004 

Refundable deposits 766,413 884,830 21,313 21,606 787,726 906,436 

Due to other funds 988,107 888,037 988,107 888,037 

Long-term debt 4,835,000 6,120,000 4,835,000 6,120,000 
Other liabilities 779,492 878,289 392,531 417,528 1,172,023 1,295,817 

Total liabilities 9,760,134 9,861,684 444,407 460,610 10,204,541 10,322,294 

Net position 
Net investment in 

capital assets 103,942,613 99,141,344 103,942,613 99,141,344 

Restricted 4,149,103 7,932,301 4,149,103 7,932,301 

Unrestriced 26,382,458 24,796,206 477,652 432,688 26,860,110 25,228,894 

Total net position $ 134,474, 174 $ 131,869,851 $ 477,652 $ 432,688 $ 134,951,826 $ 132,302,539 

The City's overall net position increased $2,649,287 from the net position at the end oflast fiscal year. 
The reasons for this overall increase are discussed in the following sections for governmental and 
business-type activities. 
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-Changes in Net Position 

Revenues: 
Program revenues 

Charges for services 
Operating grants and 

contributions 
Capital grants and 

contributions 
General revenues 
Property taxes 
Other taxes 
Other 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 
General government 
Police services 
Public works 
Planning 
Engineering 
Infrastructure 
Interest on long-term 

debt 
Recreation 
Other 

Total expenses 
Change in net position 
before transfers 

Transfers 

$ 

CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Governmental activities Business-type activities 
2017 2016 2017 2016 

2,993,980 $ 3,026,008 $ 1,300,301 $ 1,389,294 $ 

992,416 

2,217,522 

6,226,957 
7,355,357 
4,011,889 

23,798,121 

4,179,028 
5,455,796 
3,148,160 

760,021 
6,221,990 

169,164 

1,314,639 
21,248,798 

2,549,323 
55,000 

2,604,323 
131,869,851 

907,697 

619,102 

6,346,889 
7,601,515 
3,049,210 

21,550,421 

3,711,254 
5,321,731 
2,238,759 

692,472 
6,214,874 

230,625 

1,389,465 
19,799,180 

1,751,241 
30,000 

1,781,241 
130,088,610 

421 
1,300,722 

1,200,758 

1,200,758 

99,964 
(55,000) 
44,964 

432,688 

762 
1,390,056 

1,288,899 

1,288,899 

101,157 
(30,000) 
71,157 

361,531 

Total 
2017 2016 

4,294,281 $ 

992,416 

2,217,522 

6,226,957 
7,355,357 
4,012,310 

25,098,843 

4,179,028 
5,455,796 
3,148,160 

760,021 
6,221,990 

169,164 
1,200,758 
1,314,639 

22,449,556 

2,649,287 

2,649,287 
132,302,539 

4,415,302 

907,697 

619,102 

6,346,889 
7,601,515 
3,049,972 

22,940,477 

3,711,254 
5,321,731 
2,238,759 

692,472 
6,214,874 

230,625 
1,288,899 
1,389,465 

21,088,079 

1,852,398 

1,852,398 
130,450,141 

Change in net position 
Net position - beginning 
Prior period adjustment 
Net position - ending $ 134,474,174 $ 131,869,851 $ 477,652 $ 432,688 $ 134,951,826 $ 132,302,539 

• Governmental activities revenues increased 10% from the prior year, the result of increases in 
capital grants and contributions and other revenue. 

> Capital grants and contributions were up significantly primarily due to a $2,000,000 grant 
of Measure J funds for the Olympic & Reliez Station Road Corridor Improvements. 

> Other revenue increased by about $962,000 due to: $490,000 more in reimbursed work in 
the Streets & Signals Fund, $83,000 more in investment earnings, and $183,000 more in 
motor vehicle in lieu fees, which grow with property tax. 

• Governmental activities expenses increased 7% from the prior year, with the largest increases in 
general government and public works. 

> General government expenses increased $468,000 due to higher legal costs associated 
with litigation and special services ($260,000), negotiated changes in salaries and 
benefits ($88,000), investment in a City GIS system and computer upgrades ($51,000). 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

>- Public works expenses increased mainly because of the manner in which the City 
accounts for capital outlay expenditures that fall below the capitalization threshold 
($804,000). 

Governmental Activities. During the current fiscal year, net position for governmental activities 
increased $2,604,323 from the prior fiscal year balance, for an ending balance of $134,474,174. 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities 

$7,000,000 D Expenses 
$6,000,000 u-------------------7'-:::::::iil----I 
$5,000,000 ii Program revenues 
$4,000,000 
$3,000,000 
$2,000,000 
$1,000,000 

$0.id"::L_.~:::;::::::::L•lll!:::~-1-i!::::;;::::L-1 
General Police services Public works Planning Engineering Interest on Other 

government long-term debt 

• Police services recouped 5% of its program costs, or $279,256 in program revenues 

• While planning recouped more than its costs in this fiscal year, this can be a bit misleading as the 
work can extend over periods longer than a year 

• With program revenues of $3,086,077, Engineering (which includes capital project costs) 
recoups about 50% of its costs with the remaining funding corning from general revenues, 
including gas tax and Measure J monies 

• The Other program comprises costs for parking programs, library operations and the semor 
transportation program 

Business-Type Activities. For the City's business-type activity, recreation programs, the results for the 
current fiscal year were positive in that overall net position increased by $44,964, or 10%, to reach an 
ending net position of $477,652. The increase in net position this year is attributable to ongoing efforts 
to operate a self-sustaining recreation program. Excess funds will provide resources for times of 
hardship or transition. 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near­
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the 
City's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a 
government's net resources available for discretionary use as they represent the portion of fund balance 
which has not yet been limited to use for a particular purpose by either an external party, the City itself, 
or a group or an individual that has been delegated authority to assign resources for use for particular 
purposes by the City Council. 
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CITY OF LAP A YETTE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

At June 30, 2017, the City's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $31,221 ,598 a 
decrease of $2,277,474 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 29% of the combined fund 
balance, or $9,120,009, constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the 
government's discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is either nonspendable, restricted, 
committed, or assigned to indicate that it is: 1) not in spendable form ($6,163,882), 2) legally required to 
be maintained intact ($0), 3) restricted for particular purposes ($5,521 ,246), 4) committed for particular 
purposes ($10,416,461), or 5) assigned for particular purposes ($0). 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned 
fund balance of the general fund was $9,522,319, while total fund balance increased to $19,483,036. As 
a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and 
total fund balance to total general fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents about 74% of 
total general fund expenditures, which exceeds industry recommendations, while total fund balance 
represents about 152% of that same amount. 

Unassigned 
Assigned 

Committed 
Restricted 

Nonspendable 
~ 

$-

I I 
I I 
I I 

$1 $2 $3 

General Fund 
Components of Fund Balance 

June 30, 2016 and 2017 

$4 $5 $6 $7 $8 $9 $10 

Millions 

02016 

111 2017 

The fund balance of the City's general fund increased by $621,954 during the current fiscal year 
primarily due to the strong local housing market. This trend resulted in higher property taxes ($280,000) 
reflective of higher prices seen in calendar year 2015 and higher planning and engineering charges for 
service ($384,000) as existing homeowners worked to update and improve their current residences. 

The parking programs fund, a new major fund, had a decrease in fund balance during the current fiscal 
year of $1,545,352, which put the overall fund balance at $392,521. The decrease results from the 
purchase of two parcels on Golden Gate Way and their subsequent improvements in order to function as 
a downtown parking lot. 

The public facilities fund, a major fund, had a $951,833 increase in fund balance during the current 
fiscal year, which put the overall fund balance at $1 ,149,145. The increase results primarily from the 
transfer in of $1 ,420,000 from the General Fund for purchase of the Master Lease at 3471 Mt. Diablo 
Blvd. and the build out of a new police station at this location. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

The streets and signals fund, a major governmental fund, had a $616,586 decrease in fund balance in the 
current fiscal year, resulting in an end of year balance of $1,038,566. The net negative change was the 
result of utilizing resources that had been accumulated in prior years on projects that were executed in 
the current fiscal year. 

The capital projects funds, a major fund, had a $548,523 increase in fund balance during the current 
fiscal year which raised the overall fund balance to $5,401 ,748. This was primarily due to the fact that 
there are no active projects on which these funds are currently being applied. As a result, the fund 
balance is building as revenues accumulate. 

The debt service fund, the remaining major fund, had a $939,091 decrease in fund balance during the 
current fiscal year, which put the overall fund balance at $592,264. The decrease results from the use of 
fund balance for a bond refunding transaction and the scheduled use of the excess fund balance. In 
December 2016, the City issued the 2016 General Obligation Refunding Bonds in the amount of 
$2,055,000. The bond proceeds, together with existing fund balance in the debt service fund of 
$911,220, were used to refund the 2004 General Obligation Bonds and cover the cost of issuance. As a 
matter of practice, each year when the tax levy is calculated, the current fund balance in taken into 
account against the remaining debt service so that a lower rate is achieved, resulting in reduced property 
tax bills for landowners. 

Unassigned 

Assigned 

Committed 

Restricted 

Nonspendable 
I 

I 

$-

Other Governmental Funds 
Components of Fund Balance 

June 30, 2016 and 2017 

• 

$2,000,000 $4,000,000 $6,000,000 $8,000,000 

02016 

Iii 2017 

Governmental funds that do not meet the determination of a major fund are presented in the aggregate. 
The other governmental funds had a $1,298,755 decrease in fund balance, resulting in an end of year 
balance of $3,164,318. This decrease is attributable to the expenditure of more money than was 
received in the year with regard to gas tax, Measure J, and the stormwater pollution assessment district. 
Gax tax and Measure J monies are typically collected annually, accumulated over time and then 
expended when applicable projects require funds. The stormwater pollution assessment district, 
however, is experiencing declining assessment income while the compliance measures are becoming 
more costly. 

Proprietary Funds. The City's proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the 
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. The City's recreation program is tracked as 
an enterprise fund, a type of proprietary fund. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Unrestricted net position of the recreation programs at the end of the year was $477,652. The total 
growth in net position for the fund was $44,964. As noted earlier in the discussion of business-type 
activities, the increase to the recreation programs is due to ongoing efforts to operate a self-sustaining 
recreation program. Excess funds will provide resources for times of hardship or transition. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Original budget compared to final budget. During the year several changes were made between the 
proposed and final budgets. The most significant of these include: 

• Increase in General Fund expenditures: 
);>- $185,237 for the setting of a bonus pool for staff 
);>- $110,000 for the replacement of two police vehicle ($55,000 released from the reserve 

and $55,000 reallocated from police services contract) 
);>- $13,416 for cameras and ALPR equipment 
);>- $23,688 to write off planning fees related to a litigated case that was settled 
);>- $15,432 for coverage while staff was on leave 
);>- $36,839 for recruitment of Parks, Trails and Recreation Director ($10,000), trustee fees 

for City issued debt ($7,000), and legal services related to personnel matters ($20,000) 

Final budget compared to actual results. Actual revenues came in over budget by $977,727. 

Property Tax and assessments are the largest revenue source for the City. Incorporated in 1968, the City 
did not levy a property tax prior to 1978 when Proposition 13 was adopted. Consequently, it receives a 
relatively low share of the property tax under the statutory formula. Under legislation adopted in 1988, 
some relief has been granted to cities in similar circumstances. Property tax collections, however, 
continue to be relatively less than most other California cities collect. Currently, the City receives 
approximately 6.6% of the property taxes paid by its residents, compared to an average of 10.5% for 
other cities in Contra Costa. This is not likely to change. 

Despite the comparatively low share received by the City, the property tax base remains stable. Assessed 
values in the City increased 7.29% from $6,933,931,448 in fiscal year 2015/16 to $7,439,289,837 in 
fiscal year 2016/17. The difference between the property tax budget and actual is that we did not foresee 
such a large increase. The forecast reflects conservative property tax growth of 3 %, whereas the reality 
was 6.3%. Property tax revenues increased at a rate less than the increase in assessed value due to 
contributions from supplemental and unitary taxes. 

The local economy continues to hold steady with slight increases not just in property tax revenues, but 
also transient occupancy, real property transfer tax, and franchise taxes. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Actual expenditures came in $1,005,028 under budget. The primary sources of these savings were police 
services, public works and library operations. Police services were under budget by $514,952 due to the 
backfilling of vacant positions with overtime hours. In addition, additional funds are always budgeted 
here in the event that extra staff may be needed. Public works was under budget by $229 ,225 due to the 
deferral of normal repair work due to storm clean-up efforts. Library operations came in $158,562 
under budget primarily because of staffmg shortages in contracted services and the cost of additional 
operating hours came in less than budgeted. In addition, there was some shuffling of the capital outlay 
projects: the Community Hall LEDs project was only minimally implemented due to the lack of 
replacement lights available and the Library Foundation purchased the chairs that had been budgeted, so 
the City installed artificial turf for an overall budget savings. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets. The City's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for its 
governmental activities as of June 30, 2017 is valued at $108,777,613. The City did not have any capital 
assets for its business-type activities as of June 30, 2017. 

Land 
Improvements 
Buildings 
Infrastructure 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
Books and artwork 
Construction in progress 
Total capital assets 

Governmental activities 

$ 15,752,339 $ 
2,282,093 

38,432,997 
45,850,570 

563,389 
497,431 

1,222,507 
4,176,287 

$ 108,777,613 $ 

14,230,959 
2,257,719 

39,267,865 
46,629,513 

650,295 
548,309 

1,253,104 
423,580 

105,261,344 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 

• Completed the 2015 Surface Seal Program 

• Completed the 2016 Road Rehabilitation Project 

• Completed the Taylor Boulevard Safety Project and Community Center Pedestrian Crossing 

• Purchased two parcels on Golden Gate Way and improved them for use as a downtown parking 
lot 

• Completed the majority of the work on the Olympic- Reliez Station Road Corridor 
Improvements 

• Began the build out of the Police Station on 3471 Mt. Diablo Boulevard 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 6 on page 54. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Long-term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of 
$4,835,000. This amount is comprised of two general obligation bonds that were issued for the purpose 
of reconstructing the City's major arterial roadways. This amount is ad valorem property tax debt for 
which the government is liable in the event of default by the property owners subject to the tax. As of 
June 30, 2017, the City did not have any long-term obligations for its business-type activities. 

The City's total debt decreased by $3,340,000 (55%) during the current fiscal year. The reasons for the 
decrease were the regularly scheduled principal payments on the existing outstanding debt and the 
refunding of the 2004 General Obligation Bonds. 

The City maintains a "AAA" rating from Standard & Poor's for general obligation debt. 

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a government entity may issue to annual 
revenue, unless approved by 2/3 of voters. The debt limitation for the City was $19 million, which is 
significantly in excess of the City's outstanding general obligation debt of $4,835,000. 

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 7 on pages 55-56 of this 
report. 

Economic Factors 

The City places a high priority on supporting existing businesses and attracting new business that will 
appeal to residents. Through collaboration with business and property owners, developers, and the 
Chamber of Commerce, the City of Lafayette continues to prosper. Sales tax revenues continue to climb 
higher due to new restaurants and retailers and transient occupancy tax is reflective of a higher number 
of guests coming to the City. 

Requests for Information 

This fmancial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with 
an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to: 

City of Lafayette 
Finance Department 

3675 Mt Diablo Blvd., Suite 210 
Lafayette, CA 94549 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Basic Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities summarize the entire City's financial 
activities and financial position. They are prepared on the same basis as is used by most businesses, which 
means they include all the City's assets and all its liabilities, as well as all its revenues and expenses. This is 
known as the full accrual basis - the effect of all the City's transactions is taken into account, regardless of 
whether or when cash changes hands, but all material internal transactions between City funds have been 
eliminated. 

The Statement of Net Position reports the difference between the City's total assets and deferred outflows 
and the City's total liabilities and deferred inflows, including all the City's capital assets and all its long­
term debt. The Statement of Net Position focuses the reader on the composition of the City's net position, 
by subtracting total liabilities and deferred inflows from total assets and deferred outflows and 
summarizes the financial position of all the City's Governmental Activities in a single column, and the 
fmancial position of all the City's Business-Type Activities in a single column; these columns are 
followed by a Total column that presents the fmancial position of the entire City. 

The City's Governmental Activities include the activities of its General Fund, along with all its Special 
Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds. The City's Business Type Activities include all its 
Enterprise Activities. Fiduciary activity is excluded. 

The Statement of Activities reports increases and decreases in the City's net position. It is also prepared on 
the full accrual basis, which means it includes all the City's revenues and all its expenses, regardless of 
when cash changes hands. This differs from the "modified accrual" basis used in the fund financial 
statements, which reflect only current assets, current liabilities, available revenues and measurable 
expenditures. 

The Statement of Activities presents the City's expenses first, listed by program. Program revenues-that 
is, revenues which are generated directly by these programs-are then deducted from program expenses to 
arrive at the net expense of each governmental program. The City's general revenues are then listed in the 
Governmental Activities and the Change in Net Position is computed and reconciled with the Statement of 
Net Position. 
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ASSETS 
Cash and investments (Note 3) 
Restricted cash and investments (Note 3) 
Accounts receivable 
Interest receivable 
Due from other funds 
Prepaid items (Note lJ) 

CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2017 

Governmental 
Activities 

Loan receivable from Successor Agency (Note 5) 
Net OPEB Asset (Note 9) 

$13,014,497 
10,343,847 
3,121,362 

4,385 
387,688 

21,009 
8,053,461 

4,899 
32,250 Other assets 

Capital assets (Note 6): 
Non-depreciable 
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Interest payable 
Refundable deposits 
Due to other funds 
Unearned revenue 
Accrued compensated absences (Note lG): 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Long-term debt (Note 7): 
Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION (Note 10) 
Net investments in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 
Special revenue projects 
Housing projects 
Lighting and landscaping 
Community Services 

Total Restricted Net Position 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

20,386,775 
88,390,838 

143,761,011 

2,391,122 
36,314 

766,413 
514,810 

84,556 

131,724 
526,898 

480,000 
4,355,000 

9,286,837 

103,942,613 

592,264 
1,118,213 
1,500,731 

207,653 
730,242 

4,149,103 

26,382,458 

$134,474,174 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Business-Type 
Activities 

$641,793 

139,760 
110 

127,122 
13,274 

922,059 

30,563 

21,313 

363,845 

5,737 
22,949 

444,407 

477,652 

$477,652 

Total 

$13,656,290 
10,343,847 
3,261,122 

4,495 
514,810 

34,283 
8,053,461 

4,899 
32,250 

20,386,775 
88,390,838 

144,683,070 

2,421,685 
36,314 

787,726 
514,810 
448,401 

137,461 
549,847 

480,000 
4,355,000 

9,731,244 

103,942,613 

592,264 
1,118,213 
1,500,731 

207,653 
730,242 

4,149,103 

26,860,110 

$134,951,826 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Program Revenues 
Operating 

Charges for Grants and 
Capital 

Grants and 
Functions/Programs 
Governmental Activities: 

City council, commissions, and community support 
Police services 
Parking services 
Public works 
Senior transportation 
Library operations 
Planning 
Engineering 
Administration 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-type Activities: 
Recreation Programs 

Total Business-type Activities 

Total 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes 
Sales taxes 
Franchise taxes 
Transient occupancy tax 
Highway users tax 
Transfer tax 

Motor vehicle in lieu, unrestricted 
Investment earnings 
Other 

Transfers, net (Note 4A) 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position-Beginning 

Net Position-Ending 

Expenses 

$1,336,345 
5,455,796 

322,280 
3,148,160 

163,477 
828,882 
760,021 

6,221,990 
2,842,683 

169,164 

21,248,798 

1,200,758 

1,200,758 

$22,449,556 

Services 

$101,073 
506,616 

92,998 
20,009 
43,633 

1,337,374 
873,555 

18,722 

2,993,980 

1,300,301 

1,300,301 

$4,294,281 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Contributions Contributions 

$178,183 

$5,000 
126,589 
650,576 
23,058 

2,212,522 
14,010 

992,416 2,217,522 

$992,416 $2,217,522 



Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

($1,336,345) ($1,336,345) 
(5,176,540) (5,176,540) 

184,336 184,336 
(3,050, 162) (3,050,162) 

(16,879) (16,879) 
(134,673) (134,673) 
600,411 600,411 

(3, 135,913) (3,135,913) 
(2,809,951) (2,809,951) 

(169,164) (169, 164) 

(15,044,880) (15,044,880) 

$99,543 99,543 

99,543 99,543 

(15,044,880) 99,543 (14,945,337) 

6,226,957 6,226,957 
3,536,651 3,536,651 
2,222,040 2,222,040 

733,429 733,429 
484,029 484,029 
379,208 379,208 

2,706,631 2,706,631 
352,494 421 352,915 
952,764 952,764 

55,000 (55,000) 

17,649,203 (54,579) 17,594,624 

2,604,323 44,964 2,649,287 

131,869,851 432,688 132,302,539 

$134,474,174 $477,652 $134,951,826 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Basic Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Major funds are defined generally as having significant activities or balances in the current year. 

The funds described below were determined to be Major Funds by the City for fiscal year 2017. 
Individual other governmental funds may be found in the Supplemental Section. 

GENERAL FUND 

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general 
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

PARKING PROGRAMS FUND 

These programs are responsible for all aspects of City parking, including installation, enforcement and 
collection. This includes enforcement of city codes and ordinances in the downtown and neighborhoods, as 
well as ensuring that conditions imposed on new construction are maintained. 

PUBLIC FACILITIES FUND 

Tracks costs associated with the purchase and repair of public buildings and construction of landscaping 
projects. 

STREETS AND SIGNALS FUND 

Tracks grants I funding contributions and costs associated with capital improvement projects: roads, drains, 
walkways, etc. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

This fund accounts for the collection of resources and related expenditures on the acquisition and 
construction of major capital improvements in the City. 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 

This fund accounts for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment of interest and principal on 
the long-term debt of the City. Ad valorem taxes are used for the payment of principal and interest. 
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ASSETS 

Cash and investments (Note 3) 
Restricted cash and investments (Note 3) 
Accounts receivable 
Interest receivable 
Due from other funds (Note 4B) 
Prepaid items (Note lJ) 

CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Parking 
General Programs 

Fund Fund 

$12,847,533 

1,875,847 $25,771 
1,384 108 

387,688 
21,009 

Loans receivable from Successor Agency (Note 5) 6,142,873 794,831 
Other assets 32,250 

Total Assets $21,308,584 $820,710 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $1,013,884 $34,454 
Due to other funds (Note 4B) 381,825 
Refundable deposits 766,101 
Unearned revenue 45,563 11,910 

Total Liabilities 1,825,548 428,189 

FUND BALANCES 

Fund balance (Note 10): 
Nonspendable 6,163,882 
Restricted 299,472 794,831 
Committed 3,497,363 
Unassigned 9,522,319 {402,3102 

Total Fund Balances 19,483,036 392,521 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $21,308,584 $820,710 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Public Streets and Capital 
Facilities Signals Projects 

Fund Fund Fund 

$1,172,035 $1,806,109 $5,552,397 
488,892 

52 524 1,428 

$1,172,087 $2,295,525 $5,553,825 

$22,942 $1,256,647 $24,955 
127,122 

312 

22,942 1,256,959 152,077 

670,361 
1,149,145 368,205 5,401,748 

.1,149,145 1,038,566 5,401,748 

$1,172,087 $2,295,525 $5,553,825 



Debt Service 
Fund 

$586,286 
5,582 

396 

$592,264 

$592,264 

592,264 

$592,264 

Other Total 
Governmental Governmental 

Funds Funds 

$166,964 $13,014,497 
1,227,020 10,343,847 

725,270 3,121,362 
493 4,385 

387,688 
21,009 

1,115,757 8,053,461 
32,250 

$3,235,504 $34,978,499 

$38,240 $2,391,122 
5,863 514,810 

766,413 
27,083 84,556 

71,186 3,756,901 

6,163,882 
3,164,318 5,521,246 

10,416,461 
9,120,009 

3,164,318 31,221,598 

$3,235,504 $34,978,499 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Reconciliation of the 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -- BALANCE SHEET 
with the 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Total fund balances reported on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position 
are different from those reported in the Governmental Funds above because of the following: 

CAPITAL ASSETS 
Capital assets used in Governmental Activities are not current assets or :financial resources and 

therefore are not reported in the Governmental Funds. 

LONG-TERM ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
The assets and liabilities below are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not 

reported in the Funds: 
Net OPEB Asset 
Interest payable 
Compensated absences 
Long-term debt 

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

See accompanying notes to :financial statements 
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$31,221,598 

108,777,613 

4,899 
(36,314) 

(658,622) 
(4,835,000) 

$134,474,174 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Public Capital 
Parking Facilities Streets and Projects 

General Programs Fund Signals Fund 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $4,721,526 
Sales tax 3,008,076 
Other taxes 3,334,677 
Charges for services 1,562,345 $312,493 $100,000 $173,504 $529,251 
Intergovernmental 2,792,558 12,000 2,212,522 
Licenses and permits 302,561 31,453 
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 75,819 181,898 
Use of money and property 340,918 28,897 200 2,021 5,510 
Miscellaneous 833,854 706,045 28 

Total Revenues 16,972,334 566,741 100,200 3,094,092 534,789 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

City council, commissions, and community support 1,346,360 
Police services 4,691,205 
Parking services 321,893. 
Public works 1,601,742 408,178 58,204 
Senior transportation 
Library operations 825,482 
Planning 766,303 
Engineering 306,371 757,865 
Administration 2,789,757 

Capital outlay 491,541 1,790,200 160,189 6,560,633 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total Expenditures 12,818,761 2,112,093 568,367 7,318,498 58,204 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 4,153,573 (1,545,352) (468,167) ( 4,224,406) 476,585 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in (Note 4A) 50,000 1,420,000 3,607,820 71,938 
Transfers (out) (Note 4A) (3,581,619) 
Issuance of bonds 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (3,531,619) 1,420,000 3,607,820 71,938 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 621,954 (1,545,352) 951,833 (616,586) 548,523 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES 18,861,082 1,937,873 197,312 1,655,152 4,853,225 

ENDING FUND BALANCES $19,483,036 $3922521 $1,149,145 $1,038,566 $5,401,748 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Other Total 
Debt Service Governmental Governmental 

Fund Funds Funds 

$636,615 $571,421 $5,929,562 
3,008,076 

1,012,604 4,347,281 
20,009 2,697,602 

277,437 5,294,517 
334,014 

12,321 270,038 
1,529 1,902 380,977 

39,627 1,579,554 

638,144 1,935,321 23,841,621 

1,346,360 
541,744 5,232,949 

321,893 
914,520 2,982,644 
162,550 162,550 

825,482 
766,303 

88,162 1,152,398 
2,789,757 

13,961 9,016,524 

3,394,767 3,394,767 
237,468 237,468 

3,632,235 1,720,937 28,229,095 

(2,994,091) 214,384 (4,387,474) 

589,686 5,739,444 
(2, 102,825) (5,684,444) 

2,055,000 2,055,000 

2,055,000 (1,513,139) 2,110,000 

(939,091) (1,298,755) (2,277,474) 

1,531,355 4,463,073 33,499,072 

$592,264 $3,164,318 $31,221,598 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Reconciliation of the 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
with the 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

The schedule below reconciles the Net Change in Fund Balances reported on the Governmental Funds Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, which measures only changes in current assets and current 
liabilities on the modified accrual basis, with the Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities reported in the 
Statement of Activities, which is prepared on the full accrual basis. 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities 
are different because of the following: 

CAPITAL ASSETS TRANSACTIONS 

Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is capitalized and allocated over 
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

The capital outlay expenditures are therefore added back to fund balance 
Other non-capitalized expenditures are deducted from fund balance 
Depreciation expense is deducted from the fund balance · 
Loss on disposal of capital asset is deducted from fund balance 

LONG-TERM DEBT PROCEEDS AND PAYMENTS 

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but 
issuing debt. increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. 
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but 
in the Statement ofNet Position the repayment reduces long-term liabilities. 

Repayment of debt principal is added back to fund balance 
Issuance of long-term debt 

ACCRUAL OF NON-CURRENT ITEMS 

The amounts below included in the Statement of Activities do not provide or (require) the use of 
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as revenue or expenditures in 
governmental funds (net change): 

Interest payable 
Compensated absences 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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($2,277,474) 

9,016,524 
(142,073) 

(5,314,682) 
(43,500) 

3,340,000 
(2,055,000) 

68,304 
12,224 

$2,604,323 



PROPRIETARY FUND 

CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Basic Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Enterprise funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. These 
activities are financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net 
income measurement similar to the private sector. The City's only proprietary fund (business-type) is that 
of the "Recreation Programs." 

RECREATION PROGRAMS ENTERPRISE FUND 

The Recreation Department provides a variety of recreation activities that enhance the quality of life for 
all Lafayette citizens. The Department also administers rentals at the Lafayette Community Center, the 
Buckeye Fields building and Lafayette Community Park. The Lafayette Community Center is the 
primary facility used by the recreation activities, but schools and other public and private facilities also 
are used. A Community Center Foundation assists the Department with fundraising activities which go 
toward building and landscaping improvements. The City Council expects the programs to be self­
supporting. The Parks and Recreation Director has full profit and loss responsibility for this budget 
program. 
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Current Assets: 
Cash and investments (Note 3): 
Accounts receivable 
Interest receivable 
Due from other funds (Note 4B) 
Prepaid items (Note lJ) 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities: 

CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2017 

ASSETS 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Refundable deposits 
Accrued compensated absences - Due within one year (Note lG): 
Unearned revenue 

Total current liabilities 

Non-Current Liabilities: 
Accrued compensated absences - Due in more than one year (Note lG): 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION (Note 10) 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Recreation 
Programs 

$641,793 
139,760 

110 
127,122 

13,274 

922,059 

30,563 
21,313 

5,737 
363,845 

421,458 

22,949 

444,407 

477,652 

$477,652 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Recreation fees 
Building rentals 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personnel services 
Contractual services 
Printing and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest income 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income Before Capital Contributions and Transfers 

Transfers (out) (Note 4A) 

Change in Net Position 

BEGINNING NET POSITION 

ENDING NET POSITION 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Recreation 
Programs 

$1,167,006 
133,295 

1,300,301 

562,933 
541,384 

72,106 
24,335 

1,200,758 

99,543 

421 

421 

99,964 

(55,000) 

44,964 

432,688 

$477,652 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 

Cash Flows from (used for) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Due from other accounts 
Transfers (out) 

Cash Flows from (used for) Noncapital Financing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest received 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Net Cash Flows 

Cash and investments at beginning of period 

Cash and investments at end of period 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Cash Flows 
from Operating Activities: 

Operating income 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Receivables, net 
Prepaid items 
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 
Accrued compensated absences 
Refundable deposits 
Unearned revenue 

Cash Flows from (used for) Operating Activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Recreation 
Programs 

$1,281,746 
(629,031) 
(575,531) 

77,184 

348,135 
(55,000) 

293,135 

597 

597 

370,916 

270,877 

641,793 

99,543 

(7,578) 
1,422 
9,087 

(12,598) 
(293) 

(12,399) 

$77,184 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Basic Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS (not included in government-wide statements) 

Private Purpose Trust Funds 

Private Purpose Trust Funds account for resources held by the City as trustee for third party beneficiaries. 
The City's only trust fund relates to its role as the Successor Agency for the former Redevelopment 
Agency. 

Agency Funds 

An Agency Fund is a clearing type fund for the collection of taxes or deposits held, on behalf of individuals, 
private organizations and other governments. The fund is custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and 
does not involve measurement of results of operations. 

35 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2017 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments (Note 3) 
Restricted cash and investments held by fiscal agents (Note 3) 
Receivables: 

Accounts 
Interest 

Other assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Compensated absences 
Interest payable 
Unearned revenue 
Due to members 
Loan payable to the City's Generi:tl Fund 
Loan payable to the Housing Successor Agency 
Loan payable to the Parking Fund 
Long-term debt - due in less than one year 
Long-term debt - due in more than one year 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION 

Held in trust for private purposes 

Total Net Position 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Private Purpose 
Trust Fund 

$2,740,877 

$2,740,877 

$686,009 

6,142,874 
1,115,757 

794,831 
2,548,088 

34,374,118 

45,661,677 

(42,920,800) 

($42,920,800) 

Agency 
Funds 

$770,237 

425,947 
194 
500 

$1,196,878 

$293,991 
11,895 

137,959 
753,032 

$1,196,877 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

ADDITIONS 

Property taxes 

Total Additions 

DEDUCTIONS 

Contractual services 
Interest expense and fiscal charges 

Total Deductions 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Private Purpose 
Trust Fund 

$3,562,271 

3,562,271 

75,150 
1,606,547 

1,681,697 

1,880,574 

( 44,801,374) 

($42,920,800) 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

I NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

fucorporated in 1968, Lafayette is located in Contra Costa County, one of the nine counties of the 
San Francisco Bay Area. Located on 15 square miles, Lafayette is noted for its high quality of life 
with top rated schools, low crime rate, small town downtown, clean air, mild climate and oak tree­
studded hills. Located between Berkeley and Walnut Creek, Lafayette has its own Bay Area Rapid 
Transit station (BART) andJis only a 25 minute BART ride from San Francisco. 

The City's current population is estimated to be 25,199. The City is primarily a residential 
community with commercial and light industrial enterprises as well as local governmental offices. 

A. Reporting Entity 

The Basic Financial Statements of the City includes only the financial activities of the City, which 
has no component units. 

B. Basis of Presentation 

The City's Basic Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. The Government Accounting Standards Board 
is the acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting 
standards followed by governmental entities in the United States of America. 

These Statements require that the financial statements described below be presented. 

Government-wide Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
display information about the reporting government as a whole. These statements include the 
financial activities of the overall City government, except for fiduciary activities. Governmental 
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange 
transactions. 

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues 
for each function of the City's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are 
specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a 
particular function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services 
offered by the programs, (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational 
needs of a particular program and ( c) fees, grants and contributions that are restricted to financing 
the acquisition or construction of capital assets. Revenues that are not classified as program 
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's 
funds, including fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental and 
fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major individual 
governmental funds, each of which is displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental 
funds are aggregated and reported as other governmental funds. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

I NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) I 
C. Major Funds 

The City's major governmental funds are identified and presented separately in the fund financial 
statements. All other funds, called other governmental funds, are combined and reported in a single 
column, regardless of their fund-type. 

Major funds are defined as funds that have either assets, liabilities, revenues or 
expenditures/expenses equal to ten percent of their fund-type total and five percent of the grand total. 
The General Fund is always a major fund. The City may also select other funds it believes should be 
presented as major funds. 

The City reported the following major governmental funds m the accompanying fmancial 
statements: 

GENERAL FUND 

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all fmancial resources of the 
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

PARKING PROGRAMS FUND 

These programs are responsible for all aspects of City parking, including installation, enforcement and 
collection. This includes enforcement of city codes and ordinances in the downtown and 
neighborhoods, as well as ensuring that conditions imposed on new construction are maintained. 

PUBLIC FACILITIES FUND 

Tracks costs associated with the purchase and repair of public buildings and construction of 
landscaping projects. 

STREETS AND SIGNALS FUND 

Tracks grants/funding contributions and costs associated with capital improvement projects: roads, 
drains, walkways, etc. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

This fund accounts for the collection of resources and related expenditures on the acquisition and 
construction of major capital improvements in the City. 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 

This fund accounts for the accumulation of fmancial resources for the payment of interest and principal 
on the long-term debt of the City. Ad valorem taxes are used for the payment of principal and interest. 

The City has one enterprise fund, the Recreation Programs Fund which is a major fund. It is used to 
account for the operations of the City's recreation programs. 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

I NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) I 
Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by the City as an agent for various 
functions. The Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency Private-Purpose Trust Fund 
accounts for the accumulation of resources to be used for payments at appropriate amounts and times 
in the future. Agency Funds account for assets held by the City in a purely custodial capacity. 
Agency Funds typically involve only the receipt, temporary investment and remittance of fiduciary 
resources to individuals, private organization or other governments. The City's Agency Funds 
account for assets held by the City as an agent for the Lamorinda Fee and Financing Authority and 
the Lamorinda School Bus Transportation Agency. The financial activities of these funds are 
excluded from the City-wide fmancial statements, but are presented in separate Fiduciary Fund 
fmancials statements. 

D. Basis of Accounting 

The government-wide fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows 
take place. 

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable 
and available. The City considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if 
the revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the 
related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims 
and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they 
have matured. Governmental capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental 
funds. Proceeds of governmental long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as 
other fmancing sources. 

The proprietary, pension and other postemployment benefit trust, and private-purpose trust funds are 
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The 
agency fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of accounting for reporting its 
assets and liabilities. 

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, sales taxes, real property transfer taxes, 
interest revenue and charges for services. Licenses, use of property and permit revenues are not 
susceptible to accrual because they are not measurable until received in cash. 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives or receives value without directly receiving or 
giving equal value in exchange, include taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On the accrual 
basis, revenue from taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied or assessed. 
Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all 
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

Certain indirect costs are included in program expenses reported for individual functions and 
activities. 
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I NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) I 
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges 
between the government's business-type activities and various other functions of the government. 
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for 
various functions concerned. 

E. Capital Assets 

In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets are accounted for as capital assets. All 
capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is unavailable, 
except for donated capital assets which are recorded are recorded at acquisition value at the date of 
donation. Estimated historical cost was used to value the majority of the assets for which cost was not 
available. 

City policy has set the capitalization thresholds for reporting capital assets at the following: 

• All buildings (no threshold) 

• $5,000 for all other capital assets 

Prior to July 1, 2001, governmental funds' infrastructure assets were not capitalized. These assets 
(back to July 1, 1968) have been valued at estimated historical cost. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of 
Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position. Depreciation is 
provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. 

The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows: 

T e 
Land, easements, and right of way 
Land improvements 
Building and improvements 
Infrastructure 
Equipment and furniture 
Book collection 

Useful Life (years) 
NIA 
20 
50 

15-65 
3 -15 

20 

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted 
for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in 
proprietary fund (business-type) operations are accounted for the same as in the government-wide 
statements. 
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I NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) I 
F. Property Taxes 

G. 

State of California ("State") Constitution Article XIlI provides for a maximum general property tax 
rate statewide of $1 per $100 of assessed value. Assessed value is calculated at 100% of market value at 
sale date plus a maximum annual increase of 2%, unless the value is written down by the county 
assessor after which it can go back to the value at sale date plus 2% compounded to current. The State 
Legislature has determined the method of distribution of receipts from the $1 levy among the counties, 
cities, school districts and other districts. Counties, cities and school districts may levy such additional 
tax rate as is necessary to provide for voter approved debt service. 

However, since Lafayette was incorporated in 1968 as a no-property-tax city, through fiscal year 
June 30, 1988, Lafayette received property tax distributions only for those geographical areas 
incorporated into the city limits after 1978, when Proposition XIlI became law with its restrictions 
on funding. Thus, though Lafayette's property owners paid property taxes at the same rate as 
property owners in other cities, the City of Lafayette received no share, except from those areas of 
the City annexed after 1978. 

Pursuant to the 1988 Trial Court Funding Bill and subsequent reallocations, the City has received a 
measure of relief from this funding deficiency. Beginning in 1989, Lafayette began receiving funds 
in lieu of property taxes and/or additional property tax allocations. The receipt of these funds was 
phased in gradually, and by 1997/1998 the City of Lafayette was receiving the equivalent of 
approximately 7% of the total property taxes that its property owners paid. This can be compared to 
the average 10.5% allocation received by cities in Contra Costa County. The amount received was 
further reduced by a partial shift to fund schools, and amounts sent to the Successor Agency of the 
former Redevelopment Agency (RDA). While the City of Lafayette is a no/low property tax city, it 
has not qualified for an additional property tax allocation since fiscal year 2000-01. 

The County of Contra Costa uses the following calendar to assess properties, bill for, collect, and 
distribute property taxes. 

Secured Unsecured 

Valuation dates March 1 March 1 
Lien/levy dates March 1 March 1 
Due dates 50% on November 1 July 1 

50% on February 1 
Delinquent as of December 10 August31 

AprillO 

Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences are comprised of unused vacation leave and compensatory time off, which 
are accrued as earned. City employees who have 10 or more years of tenure also receive 25% 
compensation for sick leave. The liability for these compensated absences in the government-wide 
statements has been estimated by management to be 20% current and 80% non-current liabilities. 
The portion expected to be permanently liquidated is recorded in the governmental funds and are 
recorded as fund liabilities. The long-term portion is recorded in the statement of net position and is 
liquidated primarily by the General Fund. 
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H. 

The activities of the compensated absences for the year ended June 3 0, 2017 were as follows: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

Balance as of June 30, 2016 $670,846 $41,284 $712,130 
Additions 311,002 11,994 322,996 
Payments (323,226) (24,592) (347,818) 

Ending Balance $658,622 $28,686 $687,308 

Current Portion $131,724 $5,737 $137,462 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

L Cash and Investments 

The City maintains a cash and investments pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund's 
portion of this pool is displayed on the Balance Sheets for the governmental funds and Statement of 
Fiduciary Net Position for the Proprietary Fund and Agency Funds as cash and investments. 
Investments are stated at fair value. Fair value is estimated based on quoted market prices at year 
end. 

J. Prepaid Items 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is 
recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased. 

K; Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of fmancial position or balance sheet will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies 
to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) 
until then. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position or balance sheet will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to 
a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow or resources (revenue) until that time. 

The City does not have any items that qualify for reporting in this category this fiscal year. 
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I NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

L. Fair Value Hierarchy 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The City 
categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation 
techniques used to measure fair value into three levels based on the extent to which inputs used in 
measuring fair value are observable in the market. 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities. 

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable 
for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability. 

If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one level of the fair 
value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement. 

INOTE 2 -BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

A. Budgeting Procedures 

The City's fiscal year runs from July 1 through June 30. Each year, the Administrative Services 
Director prepares two budgets -- the Proposed Budget, which is adopted in June, and the Final 
Budget, which is adopted in December. The budget process is as follows: 

• In January, the City Council meets to set the goals and priorities for the upcoming fiscal year. 

• In February and March, the department heads prepare their preliminary budgets and 
incorporate requests from commissions and committees. 

• In mid-March, each department head meets with the City Manager, Administrative Services 
Director and Finance Manager to review the budget requests. 

• In mid-April, the Administrative Services Director presents the Proposed Budget to the 
Finance Committee. 

• At the end of May, the Proposed Budget is introduced at a regular City Council meeting. 

• The City Council holds a special budget workshop meeting, usually the first week in June. At 
this meeting, the public is invited to comment on the budget and the Council makes a number 
of important policy decisions regarding the budget. 

• The budget, and any changes made to it during the budget workshop, are adopted by 
resolution at the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting. 
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• After the audit for the prior fiscal year has been completed, usually in late September, the 
Administrative Services Director begins work on the Final Budget. The Final Budget 
incorporates actual expenses and revenues from the prior fiscal year, as well as any changes 
made by the City Council to the Proposed Budget. If other programs or expenditures are 
anticipated, these items are incorporated into the Final Budget as well. 

• The City Council reviews the Final Budget at a regularly scheduled meeting in December, 
and adopts the Final Budget by resolution. 

• Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted and as further amended by the City Council. The 
level of control (level at which expenditures may not exceed budget) is at the departmental 
level for the General Fund, department level for the Special Revenue Funds and project level 
for the Capital Projects Funds. 

B. Expenditures in Excess of Appropriations 

The funds below incurred expenditures in excess of appropriations in the amounts below. These 
Special Revenue Funds had sufficient fund balances or revenues to finance these expenditures. 

Funds 
General 

Administration 
Parking Programs 

Parking Services 
Public Facilities 

Capital Outlay 
Capital Projects 

Public Works 
Debt Service 

Principal Retirement 
Interest and fiscal charges 

I NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Excess of Expenditures 
Over Appropriation 

($88,335) 

(9,299) 

(160,189) 

(1,267) 

(2,884, 767) 
(18,801) 

The City pools cash from all sources and all funds except cash held with fiscal agents so that it can 
be invested at the maximum yield, consistent with safety and liquidity, while individual funds can 
make expenditures at any time. 

A. Policies 

The City and its fiscal agents invest in individual investments and in investment pools. Individual 
investments are evidenced by specific identifiable pieces of paper called securities instruments, or by 
an electronic entry registering the owner in the records of the institution issuing the security, called 
the book entry system. 
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California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government securities with 
a market value of 110% of the City's cash on deposit, or first trust deed mortgage notes with a 
market value of 150% of the deposit, as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law this 
collateral is held in a separate investment pool by another institution in the City's name and places 
the City ahead of general creditors of the institution. 

The City's investments are carried at fair value, as required by generally accepted accounting 
principles. The City adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect their fair value at each 
fiscal year end, and it includes the effects of these adjustments in income for that fiscal year. 

B. Classification 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as 
follows: 

Statement of Net Position 

Cash and investments 

Restricted cash and investments 

Total cash and investments in primary government 

Statements of Fiduciary Net Position 

Restricted Cash and investments 

Private Purpose Trust Funds 

Cash and investments: 

Agency Funds 

Total Cash and investments 

Amount 

$13,656,290 

10,343,847 

24,000,137 

2,740,877 

770,237 

$27,511,251 

C Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City of Lafayette's 
Investment Policy 

The City's Investment Policy and the California Government Code allow the City to invest in the 
following, provided the credit ratings of the issuers are acceptable to the City; and approved 
percentages and maturities are not exceeded. The table below also identifies certain provisions of the 
California Government Code, or the City's Investment Policy where the City's Investment Policy is 
more restrictive. 
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D. 

Maximum 
Maximum Minimum Credit Maximum.% Investment 

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality* of Portfolio in One Issuer 
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years NIA 100% 100% 
California Local Agency Obligations 5 years Aa2 100% 100% 
U.S. Agency Securities 5years NIA 100% 100% 
Bankers Acceptances 180 days Pl 20% 30% 
Commercial Paper 270 days Pl 25% 10% 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years Aa2 30% 100% 
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5 years Aa2 10% 100% 

Top rating 
Money Market Mutual Funds NIA category 15% 10% 
Collateralized Bank Deposits 5 years NIA 100% 100% 
Time Deposits 5 years NIA 100% 100% 
Joint Powers Authority NIA NIA 100% 100% 
California Local Agency Investment Fund NIA NIA 100% 100% 

*As of date of p~chase 

Investments Authorized hy Debt Agreements 

The City must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with trustees or fiscal agents 
under the terms of certain debt issues. These funds are unexpended bond proceeds or are pledged 
reserves to be used if the City fails to meet its obligations under these debt issues. The California 
Government Code requires these funds to be invested in accordance with City resolutions, bond 
indentures or State statutes. These bond indentures did not disclose limitations for maximum 
percentage of portfolio and investment in one issuer. The table below identifies the investment types 
that are authorized for investments held by fiscal agents. The table also identifies certain provisions 
of these debt agreements: 

Maximum Minimum Credit 
Authorized Investment Type 

U.S. Treasury Obligations 
U.S. Agency Securities (A) 

Bankers Acceptances 
Commercial Paper 
Short-Term Certificates ofDeposit 
Repurchase Agreements 
Money Market Mutual Funds 
Unsecured CD's, deposit accounts, time deposits, bankers acceptances 
Prefunded Municipal Obligations 
FDIC insured deposit 
Investment Agreements 

Maturity 
NIA 
NIA 
1 year 

270 days 
1 year 
NIA 
NIA 
1 year 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 

(A) Securities issued by agencies of the federal governments such as the Federal Farm Credit 
Bank (FFCB), the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), the Federal National Mortgage 
Association (FNMA), Export-Import Bank, Farm Credit System Financial Assistance Corporation, 
Farmers Home Administration, General Services Administration, United States Maritime 
Administration, Small Business Administration, Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA), 
United States Department of Housing & Urban Development (PHA's), the Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) and Federal Housing Administration debentures. 
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I NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) I 
E. Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in economic markets will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its 
fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the City manages its exposure to 
interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by 
timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to 
maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City's investments (including investments 
held with fiscal agents) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that 
shows the distribution of the City's investments by maturity: 

Investment Type 
Joint Investment Pools: 

Local Agency Investment Fund 
Cal Trust 

Money Market Mutual Funds 
Corporate Notes 
Certificates of Deposit 

Total Investments 

Cash in banks and on hand 

Total Cash and Investments 

F. Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

12Months 
or less 

$2,478,034 
10,695,167 
1,653,323 

756,132 
250,092 

$15,832,748 

13 to 
24 Months 

$8,977,376 

$8,977,376 

Total 

$2,478,034 
10,695,167 
1,653,323 

756,132 
9,227,468 

24,810,124 

2,701,127 

$27,511,251 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to. the 
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where 
applicable) the California Government Code, the City's investment policy, or debt agreements, and 
the actual Moody's rating as of year end for each investment type: 
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Investment 

Corporate Notes 

Totals 

Not Rated: 
Joint Investment Pools: 

Local Agency Investment Fund 
Cal Trust 

Certificates ofDeposit 
Money Market Mutual Funds 

Exempt from rating requirement: 
Cash in banks and on hand 

Total Cash and Investments 

G. Concentration of Credit Risk 

Al 

$756,132 

$756,132 

Total 

$756,132 

756,132 

2,478,034 
10,695,167 
9,227,468 
1,653,323 

2,701,127 

$27,511,251 

The City's investment policy regarding the amount that can be invested in any one issuer is 
stipulated by the California Government Code. However, the City is required to disclose 
investments that represent a concentration of five percent or more of investments in any one issuer 
other than U.S. Treasury Securities, mutual funds and external investment pools. 

City did not have any investments that require disclosure as none met the 5% level as of June 30, 2017. 

II. InvesunentPools 

The City is a participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by California 
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The 
City reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF, which is the same as 
the value of the pool share. The balance is available for withdrawal on demand, and is based on the 
accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Included in 
LAIF's investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed securities, 
other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state funds, United States Treasury Notes and Bills and 
floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, and 
corporations. At June 30, 2017, these investments have an average maturity of 194 days. 

The City is a voluntary participant Investment Trust of California (CalTrust). Organized as a Joint 
Powers Authority ("JP A''), Cal Trust is a program established by public agencies in California for the 
purpose of pooling and investing local agency funds - operating reserves as well as bond proceeds. 
A Board of Trustees supervises and administers the investment program of the Trust. Any 
California local agency may participate in the Trust and invest its funds, and in the case of counties, 
the funds of other local agencies that have invested with the County Treasurer's Office. Cal Trust 
offers the option of four accounts to provide participating agencies - a money market, a short-term, a 
medium-term, and soon-to-be opened long-term account. For the Short-Term, Medium-Term, and 
Long-Term Accounts, funds from all participants are pooled in each of the accounts. Participants 
receive units in the Trust and designated shares for the particular accounts in which they invest. 
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CalTrust invests in fixed income securities eligible for investment pursuant to California 
Government Code Sections 53601, et. seq. and 53635, et. seq. Investment guidelines adopted by the 
Board of Trustees may further restrict the types of investments held by the Trust. Leveraging within 
the Trust's portfolios is prohibited. At June 30, 2017, the City had shares in the CalTrust Medium­
Term Fund, which held investments in an average maturity of 2.05 years. 

L Fair Value Hierarchy 

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure fair value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in an active market for identical 
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant 
unobservable inputs. 

The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of the fair value of investments of the City as 
of June 30, 2017: 

Investment TyEe Level 1 Level 2 Exempt Total 
California Local Agency Investment Fund $2,478,034 $2,478,034 
Certificates ofDeposit $9,227,468 9,227,468 
Corporate Notes $756,132 756,132 
Money Market Funds 213,497 213,497 
CalTrust 10,695,167 10,695,167 
Held by Trustees: 

Money Market Mutual Fund 1,439,826 1,439,826 
Total Investments $756,132 $19,922,635 $4,131,357 24,810,124 

Cash in banks and on hand 2,701,127 
Total Cash and investments $27,511,251 

Corporate Notes classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using quoted prices in 
active markets. Certificates of Deposit classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued 
using matrix pricing techniques maintained by various pricing vendors. Matrix pricing is used to 
value securities based on the securities' relationship to benchmark quoted prices. CalTrust classified 
in Level 2 is valued on the basis of the market value of such securities or, if market quotations are 
not readily available, at fair value under guidelines established by the CalTrust Trustees. 
Investments with short remaining maturities may be valued at amortized cost which CalTrust Board 
has determined to equal fair value. Fair value is defined as the quoted market value on the last 
trading day of the period. 
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I NOTE 4 - INTERFUND ACTIVITIES 

A. Transfers Between Funds 

With Council approval, resources may be transferred from one City fund to another. Transfer 
between City funds during fiscal year 2016-17 were as follows: 

Amount 
Fund Receiving Transfers Fund Making Transfers Transferred 

General Fund Recreation Programs Enterprise Fund $50,000 
Public Facilities Fund Non-Major Governmental Funds 1,420,000 
Streets and Signals Fund General Fund 3,581,619 

Non-Major Governmental Funds 26,201 
Capital Projects Fund Non-Major Governmental Funds 71,938 
Non-Major Governmental Funds Non-Major Governmental Funds 584,686 

Recreation Programs Enterprise Fund 5,000 

Total Interfund Transfers $5,739,444 

(A) Transfer to cover operating expenditures that meet statutory and/or budgetary requirements of each 
respective fund. 

B. Interfund Balances 

(A) 
(A) 
(A) 
(A) 
(A) 
(A) 
(A) 

Current interfund balances arise in the normal course of business and are expected to be repaid 
shortly after the end of the fiscal year. At June 30, 2017, interfund balances comprised the 
following: 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds: 

Parking Programs 

Stormwater Pollution 
Capital Projects Funds: 

Capital Projects Fund 

Enterprise Fund: 
Recreation Programs 

C Internal Balances 

Due to 
Other Funds 

$381,825 
5,863 

127,122 

$514,810 

Due from 
Other Funds 

$387,688 

127,122 

$514,810 

Internal balances are presented in the City-wide fmancial statements only. They represent the net 
interfund receivables and payables remaining after the elimination of all such balances within 
governmental and business-type activities. 
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A. General Fund and Parking Programs Fund 

The Redevelopment Agency of the City of Lafayette was formed in 1974 and the Redevelopment 
Plan was adopted in 1994. In 1999 a cooperation agreement was entered into between the City and 
the Lafayette Redevelopment Agency that established the City's advancement of funds for 
implementation of the Redevelopment Plan. Funds could be used "for the preparation and 
implementation of the redevelopment plan including, but not limited to, the costs of acquisition of 
property within the project area, demolition and clearance of properties acquired, building and site 
preparation, constructing public improvements, and providing relocation assistance to displaced 
residential and nonresidential occupants as required by law". Upon the Redevelopment Agency's 
dissolution in fiscal year 2012, this loan amount stood at $6,022,847 in principal and interest. 
Interest for this period was calculated at 8% per annum based on the loan agreement. Effective 
fiscal year 2014, the methodology for interest on this loan was changed to accrue at the average 
annual Local Agency Investment Fund rate and was applied retroactively to fiscal year 2013. In the 
dissolution process, this loan was determined to be an enforceable obligation. As of June 30, 2017, 
the total principal and accrued interest on this loan was $6,142,873. 

In 2003, the City of Lafayette and the former Redevelopment Agency of the City of Lafayette 
entered into a loan agreement, which would make available monies from the City's Parking 
Programs Fund for the acquisition and development of property for library parking and the benefit of 
the Project Area. The amount of the loan was $685,000. Payments were made according to schedule 
for fiscal years 2003 through 2010 after which time the outstanding principal amount was $540,500. 
Since then, interest has continued to accrue based on the missed payments. At June 30, 2017, the 
amount of interest outstanding was $254,331 bringing the total balance to $794,831. This loan is an 
enforceable obligation. 

On September 10, 2015, SB107 was amended to clarify many aspects of the dissolution of 
redevelopment agencies. Among these was language that "provides that sponsoring entity loans may 
be repaid at 3% interest rate calculated from the date of origination of the loan as approved by the 
redevelopment agency on quarterly basis, instead of the LAIF rate." Because of this change, the 
Oversight Board approved the loans to be decreased to be repaid at 3%. The City is waiting for 
Department of Finance to approve the change. Upon approval, the above loans balance will be 
recalculated. 

B. Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund 

The State of California's 2009 budget legislation included the taking of redevelopment funds in 
fiscal years 2010 and 2011 for the purpose of meeting its funding obligation to the Supplemental 
Education Revenue Augmentation Fund (SERAF). On February 22, 2010 the Redevelopment 
Agency Board of Directors authorized a loan from the Agency's Low and Moderate Income Housing 
Fund to the Agency's Operating Fund of $1,115,757 in order to make the first of these payments. 
Faced with the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency, on January 23, 2012, Council 
unanimously voted that the City assume the Redevelopment Agency's housing obligations. As a 
non-cash asset of the Redevelopment Agency's Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund, the loan 
was transferred to the City's Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund. No expected payment 
schedule exists and no interest accrues on this loan, which has been deemed an enforceable 
obligation. 
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!NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

A. 

In accordance with GASE Statement No. 34, the City has reported capital assets including 
infrastructure in the Government-wide Statement of Net Position. The City elected to use the basic 
approach as defined by GASE Statement No. 34 for all infrastructures reporting, whereby 
depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation has been recorded. The following table presents 
the capital assets activity for the year ended June 3 0, 2017: 

Balance Balance 
June 30, 2016 Additions Retirements Transfers Adjustments June 30, 2017 

Governmental Activities 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $14,230,959 $1,564,880 ($43,500) $15,752,339 
Artwork (library) 434,149 24,000 458,149 
Construction in progress 423,580 3,891,398 ($138,6912 4,176,287 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 15,088,688 5,480,278 (43,500) (138,691) 20,386,775 

Depreciable capital assets: 
Improvements 5,068,862 269,617 5,338,479 
Buildings 40,721,408 59,116 $3,725,763 44,506,287 
Infrastructure 120,832,937 2,829,561 138,691 768,871 124,570,060 
Equipment 1,712,089 52,080 (39,122) (195,077) 1,529,970 
Vehicles 1,294,383 183,799 (8,157) 248,576 1,718,601 
Book collection (Library) 1,091,940 1,091,940 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 170,721,619 3,394,173 (47,279) 138,691 4,548,133 178,755,337 

Accumulated depreciation: 
Improvements (2,811,143) (245,243) (3,056,386) 
Buildings (1,453,543) (893,984) (3,725,763) (6,073,290) 
Infrastructure (74,203,424) (3,747,195) (768,871) (78,719,490) 
Equipment (853,093) (138,986) 39,122 (13,624) (966,581) 
Vehicles (954,775) (234,677) 8,157 (39,875) (1,221,170) 
Book collection (Library) (272,9852 (54,597) {327,582) 

Total accumulated depreciation (80,548,963) (5,314,682) 47,279 (4,548,133) (90,364,499) 

Depreciable capital assets, net 90,172,656 (1,920,509) 138,691 88,390,838 

Governmental capital assets, net $105,261,344 $3,559,769 ($43,500) $108, 777,613 

Depreciation Allocation 

Depreciation expense is charged to functions and programs based on their usage of the related assets. 
The amounts allocated to each function or programs are as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 
City council, Commissions and Community Support 
Engineering 
Police Services 
Public Works 

Total Governmental Activities 
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!NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES I 

A. 

B. 

The City generally incurs long-term debt to finance projects, which will have useful lives equal to or 
greater than the related debt. The City's debt issues and transactions are related to governmental­
type activities are discussed below. 

Current Year Transactions and Balances 

Original Amount 
Issue Balance Balance due within 

Governmental Activity Debt: Amount June 30, 2016 Additions Retirements June 30, 2017 onexear 

2002 General Obligation Bonds 
3.50-5.125%, due 7/15/16 $4,320,000 $155,000 $155,000 

2004 General Obligation Bonds 
2.00-5.00%, due 7/15/25 6,035,000 3,160,000 3,160,000 

2011 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
2.85%, due 7/15/25 2,960,000 2,805,000 25,000 $2,780,000 $190,000 

2016 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
2.00%, due 7/15/23 2,055,000 $2,055,000 2,055,000 290,000 

$6,120,000 $2,055,000 $3,340,000 $4,835,000 $480,000 

2002 General Obligations Bonds 

On February 27, 2002, the City issued the General Obligation Election of 1995, Series 2002 Bonds 
(GOs) in the amount of $4,320,000 to finance the costs of repair and reconstruction of the City's 
roads and drains. 

The Bonds were authorized at an election held on March 7, 1995 at which more than two-thirds of 
the voters approved. Interest payments on the GOs are due semi-annually on January 15 and July 
15, and annual principal payments are due on July 15. Interest and principal payments are payable 
from ad valorem property taxes levied by the City and collected by the County. As of June 30, 2017, 
the bonds were fully repaid. 

C. 2004 General Obligation Bonds 

On April 15, 2004, the City issued the General Obligation Election of 1995, Series 2004 Bonds 
(GOs) in the amount of $6,035,000 to finance the costs of repair and reconstruction of the City's 
roads and drains, to refund a portion of the General Obligation Election of 1995, Series 1995 Bonds 
and pay cost of issuance. In December 2016, the remaining balance of these Bonds were redeemed 
as discussed in Note 7E below. 
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!NOTE 7 - LONG TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) I 
D. 2011 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 

On December 9, 2011, the City issued the 2011 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (GOs) in the 
amount of $2,960,000 to refund a portion of the General Obligation Bonds, Election of 1995, Series 
2002 and the cost of issuance. The 2002 Bonds were originally issued to finance the costs of repair 
and reconstruction of the City's roads and drains. Due to the refunding, total debt service payments 
were reduced by about $256,000 and had an accounting gain (difference between the present values 
of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of approximately $214,000. Interest payments 
on the GOs are due semi-annually on January 15 and July 15, and annual principal payments are due 
on July 15. Interest and principal payments are payable from ad valorem property taxes levied by 
the City and collected by the County. As of June 30, 2017 the total principal and interest remaining 
to be paid on the bonds were $2,780,000 and $449,589, respectively. 

E. 2016 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 

In December 2016, the City issued the 2016 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (GOs) in the 
amount of $2,055,000. The bond proceeds, together with the City's own resources of $911,220, 
were used to refund the 2004 General Obligation Bonds, and cover the cost of issuance. The 2004 
Bonds were originally issued to finance the costs of repair and reconstruction of the City's roads and 
drains, and to refund a portion of the General Obligation Election of 1995, Series 1995 Bonds and 
pay cost of issuance. As a result, total debt service payments were reduced by $765,940 and will 
obtain an accounting gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the 
old and new debt) of $223,458. Interest payments on the GOs are due semi-annually on January 15 
and July 15, and annual principal payments are due each July 15 through 2023. 

F. Debt Service Requirements 

Annual debt service requirements are shown below for all long-term debt with specified repayment 
terms: 

For The Year General Obli~ation Bonds 
Ending June 30 Principal Interest 

2018 $480,000 $114,723 
2019 490,000 103,408 
2020 505,000 91,779 
2021 510,000 79,886 
2022 525,000 67,773 

2023-2026 2,325,000 133,170 

Total payments due $4,835,000 $590,739 
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INOTE 8 -PENSION PLAN I 
A. Employee Retirement Plans 

CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Employee Retirement Contribution Plan 

As of July 1, 2004 employees of the City must participate in the retirement plan as follows: 

Salary-Based Contribution System 

The City makes monthly contributions to a 401a retirement plan for each regular employee and part 
time regular employees working a minimum of 20 hours per week. The contribution on behalf of each 
participant equal 10% of base earnings up to the maximum allowable by law. fu addition, each 
participant may contribute up to 5% of earnings to the Plan and the City has elected to match such 
contribution by the same percentage. 

Employees are fully vested in the City's contributions (and interest allocated to the employee's 
account) after five years of continuous service by the employee, with the exception of those employees 
over 50 years old who are fully vested from the first month of employment. 

The Employer will have the right at any time to terminate the Plan by resolution of its governing board. 

The City's total payroll in fiscal year 2017 was approximately $4,112,756. Contributions to the Plan 
totaled $614,954 by the City and $195,684 by individuals during the year. 

The following summarizes transactions in the Plan for the year ended June 3 0, 2017: 

Balance as of June 30, 2016 
Contributions: 

Employer 
Employee 

Other additions, net 
Disbursements, net 
Earnings and dividends 
Appreciation, net 

Balance as of June 30, 2017 

Deferred Compensation Plan 

$10,253,664 

614,954 
195,684 
(17,656) 

(656,093) 
84,484 

1,196,767 

$11,671,804 

All employees of the City are eligible to participate in a City sponsored deferred compensation plan 
(''the 457 plan"). The 457 plan provides for the deferral of a portion of the employees' compensation 
until retirement, termination, or certain other covered events. The assets of the 457 plan are held in 
trust for the exclusive benefit of plan participants. 
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!NOTE 8 - PENSION PLAN (Continued) I 
Deferred contribution by a participant in any taxable year will not exceed the lessor of (1) the 
applicable dollar amount provided under Section 457(b )(2) of the Code (adjusted for cost of living 
under Section 457(e)(15) of the Code) or (2) 100% of the Participant's Jncludible Compensation. A 
Participant who has attained age 50 before the close of the calendar year may elect Age 50 Plus Catch­
up Contributions and commence making such contributions to his Participant Deferral Account. 

The Employer will have the right at any time to terminate the Plan by resolution of its governing board. 

The following summarizes transactions in the 457 plan for the year ended June 30, 2017: 

Defmed contribution retirement plan: 

Balance as of June 30, 2016 

Contributions 

Disbursements 

Earnings 

Appreciation 

Balance as of June 30, 2017 

!NOTE 9 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) I 
Plan Description 

$7,830,832 

378,691 

(487,751) 

81,591 

794,587 

$8,597,950 

The City's defined benefit post employment healthcare plan (''the OPEB plan"), provides medical 
benefits to eligible retired City employees. 

Funding Policy 

The City is required to contribute the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount 
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents 
a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal annual costs each year 
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 
years. Amounts funded in excess or under the ARC are recorded on the books as an OPEB asset or 
liability/obligation, respectively. On April 7, 2010, the City opened an irrevocable trust account under 
the California Employers' Retiree Benefit Trust Fund (CERBT) managed by CalPERS. 

Annual OPEB Cost 

The following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB costs for 2017, the amount 
actually contributed to the OPEB plan, and changes in the City's net OPEB asset: 
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!NOTE 9- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) I 
Annual required contribution (ARC) 
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 

Annual OPEB cost 

Contributions made: 
Benefit payments 

Total contributions 

Net (increase) decrease in Net OPEB Asset 

Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) at July 1, 2016 

Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) at June 30, 2017 

Percentage of ARC contributed 

$24,583 
0 
0 

24,583 

(24,583) 

(24,583) 

0 

(4,899) 

($4,899) 

100% 

The Plan's annual OPEB cost and actual contributions for fiscal years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, 
and 2015 are set forth below: 

Percentage of NetOPEB 
Fiscal Year Beginning Net Annual Actual ARC Liability 

Ended OPEBAsset OPEB Cost Contribution Contributed (Assets) 
6/30/2015 ($9,099) $21,703 $17,503 81% ($4,899) 
6/30/2016 (4,899) 23,925 23,925 100% (4,899) 
6/30/2017 (4,899) 24,583 24,583 100% (4,899) 

Funding Status and Funding Progress 

As of June 30, 2015, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 104% funded. The 
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) for benefits was $193,279 and the Actuarial Value of Plan Assets 
were $201,116 resulting in an Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Asset (UAAA) of $7,837. The covered 
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $3,862,986 and the ratio of 
UAAA to the covered payroll was 0.20 percent. 

Actuarial valuations for OPEB plans involves estimates of the value of the reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. These actuarially determined 
amounts are subject to continual revisions as actual results are compared to past expectations and 
new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress presented immediately 
following the financial statements as required supplementary information, presents multi-year trend 
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time 
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

A separate audited GAAP basis for this post-employment benefit plan report is not available. 
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!NOTE 9 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) I 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Projections for benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan 
as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the 
time of each valuation as well as the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer 
and plan members. The actuarial calculations of the OPEB plan reflect a long-term perspective. The 
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term 
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term 
perspective of the calculations. 

The following is a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods: 

Valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

July 1, 2015 

Entry Age - Normal 

Amortization method Level Percentage of payroll, open 

Remaining amortization period 23 years 
Asset valuation method 5 year smoothed market 

Investment return 7 .00% 

Projected salary increases 2.75% annually 
Cost of living adjustments 2.75% annually 

Healthcare cost trend rate 4.0% annually 

!NOTE 10 - NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES I 
Net Position is measured on the full accrual basis, while Fund Balance is measured on the modified 
accrual basis. 

A. Net Position 

Net Position is the excess of all the City's assets and deferred outflow over all its liabilities and 
deferred inflow, regardless of fund. Net Position is divided into three captions. These captions 
apply only to Net Position, which is determined only at the Government-wide level, and are 
described below: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets describes the portion of Net Position which is represented by the 
current net book value of the City's capital assets, less the outstanding balance of any debt issued to 
finance these assets. At June 30, 2017 the breakout of this calculation is reflected as follows: 
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!NOTE 10 - NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES (Continued) 

Total Capital Assets at June 30, 2017: 

Less: Related Debts at June 30, 2017 
Long-term debt 
Less: Portion of the Debt Attributable to the Unspent Proceeds 
Net Related Debt 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 

$4,835,000 
0 

$108,777,613 

(4,835,000) 

$103,942,613 

Restricted describes the portion of Net Position which is restricted as to use by the terms and 
conditions of agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions 
which the City cannot unilaterally alter. These principally include capital projects, debt service 
requirements, and special revenue programs restricted to special revenue purposes such as 
transportation grants and revenues, stormwater and COPs grants. 

Unrestricted describes the portion of Net position which is not restricted to use. 

As of June 30, 2017 the breakout of restricted and unrestricted net position is calculated as follows: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

Assets 
Cash and investments $13,046,040 $641,793 $13,687,833 
Restricted cash and investments 10,343,847 10,343,847 
Accounts and interest receivable 3,125,747 139,870 3,265,617 
Loans receivable from Successor 

Agency 8,053,461 8,053,461 
Other assets 887,600 140,396 1,027,996 

Total Assets 35,456,695 922,059 36,378,754 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued 

liabilities 2,427,436 30,563 2,457,999 
Refundable deposits 766,413 21,313 787,726 
Due to other funds 988,107 988,107 
Other liabilities 743,178 392,531 1,135,709 

Total Liabilities 4,925,134 444,407 5,369,541 

Net Position 
Restricted 4,149,103 4,149,103 
Unrestricted 26,382,458 477,652 26,860,110 

$30,531,561 $477,652 $31,009,213 
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JNOTE 10 - NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES (Continued) 

B. Fund Balance 

Governmental fund balances represent the net current assets of each fund. Net current assets generally 
represent a fund's cash and receivables, less its liabilities. 

The City's fund balances are classified based on spending constraints imposed on the use ofresources. 
For programs with multiple funding sources, the City prioritizes and expends funds in the following 
order: Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned. Each category in the following hierarchy is 
ranked according to the degree of spending constraint: 

Nonspendables represents balances set aside to indicate items that are not available, spendable 
resources even though they are a component of assets. Fund balances required to be maintained intact, 
such as Permanent Funds, and assets not expected to be converted to cash, such as prepaids, notes 
receivable, and land held for redevelopment are included. However, if proceeds realized from the sale 
or collection of nonspendable assets are restricted, committed or assigned, then Nonspendable amounts 
are required to be presented as a component of the applicable category. 

Restricted fund balances have external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, 
regulations, or enabling legislation which requires the resources to be used only for a specific purpose. 
Nonspendable amounts subject to restrictions are included along with spendable resources. 

Committed fund balances are established, modified and rescinded by resolution of the City Council. 

Assigned fund balances are amounts constrained by the City's intent to be used for a specific purpose, 
but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by the City Council or its designee and 
may be changed at the discretion of the City Council or its designee. The City Manager is authorized 
to assign amounts to a specific purpose in accordance with the Municipal Code, Chapter 3.04 -
Purchasing System approved by the City Council under Ordinance No. 231. This category includes 
encumbrances. 

Unassigned fund balance represents residual amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or 
assigned. This includes the residual general fund balance and residual fund deficits, if any, of other 
governmental funds. 
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!NOTE 10 - NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES (Continued) 

Detailed classifications of the City's Fund Balances, as of June 30, 2017, are below: 

Parkin2 Public Capital Debt Non-Major Total 
General Pro2rams Facilities Streets and Projects Service Governmental Governmental 

Classifications Fund Fund Fund Signals Fund Fund Funds Funds 

Nonspendable: 

Prepaid Items $21,009 $21,009 

Loans Receivable from Successor Agency 6,142,873 6,142,873 

Total Nonspendable 6,163,882 6,163,882 
Restricted: 

Ca!Recycle Grant 15,048 15,048 
PEG Access 32,107 32,107 
In Lieu Tree Program 252,317 252,317 
Drainage Impact Fees $90,097 90,097 
Walkways Impact Fees 29,373 29,373 
Traffic Impact fees 550,891 550,891 
Parking $794,831 794,831 
Public Safety $84,094 84,094 
Senior Transportation 215,123 215,123 
Low and Moderate Housing 1,500,731 1,500,731 
Streets and roads 1,022,930 1,022,930 
Assessment Districts 341,440 341,440 
Debt Service $592,264 592 264 

Total Restricted 299,472 794 831 670,361 592,264 3,164,318 5,521,246 

Committed: 
Reserve Emergency Contingency 450,000 450,000 
Youth Committee 18,467 18,467 
Environmental Task Force 11,200 11,200 
Bikeways Plan Update 14,000 14,000 
Stormwater Pollution 260,000 260,000 
BART Pathway Project 253,490 253,490 
Public Art 107,018 107,018 
Facility Maintenance 500,000 $1,149,145 1,649,145 
Vacation/Sick Liability 670,517 670,517 
Senior Services Program 20,909 20,909 
Traffic Calming 101,101 101,101 
EMBUD Pathway 25,000 40,000 65,000 
Landscaping in Median Islands 258,805 258,805 
In-Lieu for Public Benefits 145,000 145,000 
Public Works Vehicle Replacement 60,000 60,000 
Planning/Engineering Vehicle Replacement 28,002 28,002 
Police Vehicle Replacement/Transition 281,427 281,427 
Computer Replacements 48,827 48,827 
OPEB Reserve (GASB 45) 18,600 18,600 
Other Capital Projects 225,000 328 205 $5,401,748 5,954,953 

Total Committed 3,497,363 1149 145 368,205 5,401 748 10,416,461 

Unassi2ned: 
General Fund 9,522,319 (402,310) 9,120,009 

Total Unassii:ned 9,522,319 (402,310) 9,120,009 

Total Fund Balances $19,483.036 $392,521 $1 149.145 $1.038 566 $5.401 748 $592.264 $3,164.318 $31.221,598 
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!NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT I 
The City is a member of the Municipal Pooling Authority (MPA) based in Walnut Creek, California. 
The MP A provides coverage against the following types of loss risks under the terms of a joint-powers 
agreement with the City and several other cities and governmental agencies as follows: 

All risk frre and property 
Boiler and machinery 
Liability 
Auto-physical damage 

Workers' compensation 
Cyber liability 
Pollution liability 
Crime 

Participating Cities Total 
Coverage 
$1,000,000,000 

100,000,000 
29,000,000 

250,000 

Statutory Limit 
2,000,000 
1,000,000 
1,000,000 

Deductible 
$25,000 

5,000 
5,000 

3,000 (Police), 
2,000 (other vehicles) 

0 
50,000 

100,000 
2,500 

The MP A is governed by a Board consisting of representatives from member municipalities. The 
Board controls the operations of the MP A, including selection of management and approval of 
operating budgets, independent of any influence by member municipalities beyond their representation 
on the Board. 

The City's deposits with the MPA are in accordance with formulas established by the MPA. Actual 
surpluses or losses are shared according to a formula developed from overall loss costs and spread to 
member entities on a percentage basis after a retrospective rating. 

Audited financial statements for the Authority are available from MP A, 1911 San Miguel Drive, Suite 
200, Walnut Creek, CA 94596. 

The total coverage includes the City's deductible, the portion underwritten by MPA, and the portion 
underwritten by other insurance companies. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to 
preclude any significant uninsured losses to the City. Settled claims have not exceeded this 
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years by any significant amount. 

The City did not record a liability for outstanding claims at fiscal year-end, as management believes 
that the claims were minimal. 

64 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

NOTE 12-LAMORINDA FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY AND LAMORINDA SCHOOL 
BUS TRANSPORTATION JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY'S 

The Lamorinda Fee and Financing Authority (LFF A) was created when the City of Lafayette entered 
into a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) with the cities of Moraga and Orinda to administer an adopted 
sub-regional transportation and traffic impact fee for the Lamorinda region under the authority of a 
Contra Costa County half cent sales tax measure adopted in 1988. Fees collected by the LFF A from 
new development are used to mitigate effects from increased traffic in the region. Complete 
financial statements of the LFFA are available at the City of Lafayette, 3675 Mt. Diablo Blvd., #210 
Lafayette, CA 94549. 

In 1994 the municipalities and school districts in the Lamorinda regions collaborated together to 
establish a school bus program for the purpose of traffic mitigation. The majority of our funds come 
from Measure J, a half-cent sales tax in Contra Costa County distributed by the Contra Costa 
Transportation Authority. The school bus program is governed by a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) 
called the Lamorinda School Bus Transportation Agency (LSBTA). 

Complete financial statements ofLSBTA are available at 3675 Mt. Diablo Blvd., #255 Lafayette, CA 
94549. 

!NOTE 13 - COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES I 
The City participates in several Federal and State grant programs. These programs have been 
subjected to audits by the City's independent accountants in accordance with the provisions of the 
Federal Single Audit Act, as amended, and applicable State requirements. No cost disallowances were 
proposed as a result of these audits. However, these programs are still subject to further examination 
by the grantors and the amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting 
agencies cannot be determined at this time. The City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

The City is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of the City 
Attorney there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the financial 
position of the City. 

!NOTE 14 - RELATED p ARTY TRANSACTION I 
In 1996, the City provided an incentive to the City Manager to reside within the City limits by taking a 
$100,000 ownership share in the City Manager's principal residence. The City Manager's 
employment agreement includes a provision that transfers 1.08% of the house's value to the City 
Manager annually and the City Manager is responsible for applicable taxes and transaction costs for 
each equity transfer. As of June 30, 2017 the City had $11,961 in remaining equity interest in the 
property with an estimated value of$1,107,536. 
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Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 
7/1/2011 
7/112013 
7/1/2015 

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 

{A} 
$87,200 
134,334 
201,116 

CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Required Supplemental Information 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 
Schedule of Funding Progress 

Overfunded 
Entry Age (Underfunded) 
Actuarial Actuarial 
Accrued Accrued Funded 
Liability Liability Ratio 

(B} {A-B} {AIB} 
$203,400 ($116,200) 43% 

155,092 (20,758) 87% 
193,279 7,837 104% 
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Unfunded 
(Overfunded) 

Actuarial 
Liability as 

Covered Percentage of 
Payroll Covered Payroll 

{C} [{A-B}/C] 
$4,057,500 -2.86% 
3,531,447 -0.59% 
3,862,986 0.20% 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Required Supplementary Information 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

GENERAL FUND 

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the 
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

PARKING PROGRAMS FUND 

These programs are responsible for all aspects of City parking, including installation, enforcement and 
collection. This includes enforcement of city codes and ordinances in the downtown and neighborhoods, as 
well as, ensuring that conditions imposed on new construction are maintained. 

67 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

REVENUES: 
Taxes: 

Property $4,283,202 $4,596,884 $4,721,526 $124,642 
Sales 3,043,859 3,038,456 3,008,076 (30,380) 
Other 5,781,593 5,839,967 6,041,308 201,341 

Current service charges 1,224,855 1,224,855 1,562,345 337,490 
Intergovernmental 85,927 85,927 
Licenses and permits 302,561 302,561 
Fines and forfeitures 120,000 120,000 75,819 (44,181) 
Use of money and property 156,600 302,330 340,918 38,588 
Miscellaneous 871,111 872,115 833,854 (38,261) 

Total Revenues 15,481,220 15,994,607 16,972,334 977,727 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

City council, commissions, and community support 1,402,407 1,423,490 1,346,360 77,130 
Police services 5,240,922 5,206,157 4,691,205 514,952 
Public works 1,800,573 1,830,967 1,601,742 229,225 
Library operations 983,039 984,044 825,482 158,562 
Planning 785,504 767,629 766,303 1,326 
Engineering 311,180 318,830 306,371 12,459 
Administration 2,577,106 2,701,422 2,789,757 (88,335) 
Capital outlay 511,250 591,250 491,541 99,709 

Total Expenditures 13,611,981 13,823,789 12,818,761 1,005,028 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 1,869,239 2,170,818 4,153,573 1,982,755 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 50,000 50,000 50,000 
Transfers (out) (2,227,130) (3,656,051) (3,581,619) 74,432 

Total other financing sources (uses) (2,177,130) (3,606,051) (3,531,619) 74,432 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($307,891) ($1,435,233) 621,954 $2,057,187 

Beginning fund balance 18,861,082 

Ending fund balance $19,483,036 
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REVENUES: 
Charges for services 
Intergovernmental 
Licenses and permits 
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 
Use of money and property 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Parking services 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESSOFREVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
PARKING PROGRAMS FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE30, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

$243,557 $245,234 

24,000 24,000 
150,000 150,000 
28,483 28,483 

446,040 447,717 

315,162 312,594 
75,000 1,815,000 

390,162 2,127,594 

55,878 (1,679,877) 

NETCHANGEINFUNDBALANCE $55,878 {$1,679,8772 

Beginning fund balance 

Ending fund balance 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
Actual Amounts (Negative) 

$312,493 $67,259 
12,000 12,000 
31,453 7,453 

181,898 31,898 
28,897 414 

566,741 119,024 

321,893 (9,299) 
1,790,200 24,800 

2,112,093 15,501 

(1,545,352) 134,525 

(1,545,352) $134,525 

1,937,873 

$392,521 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Supplementary Information 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

PUBLIC FACILITIES FUND 

Tracks costs associated with the purchase and repair of public buildings and construction of 
landscaping projects. 

STREETS AND SIGNALS FUND 

Tracks grants/funding contributions and costs associated with capital improvement projects: roads, 
drains, walkways, etc. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

This fund accounts for the collection of resources and related expenditures on the acquisition and 
construction of major capital improvements in the City. 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 

This fund accounts for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment of interest and principal 
on the long-term debt of the City. Ad valorem taxes are used for the payment of principal and interest. 
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REVENUES: 
Use of money and property 
Charges for services 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Public Works 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
PUBLIC FACILITIES FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

$250 $250 
74,700 74,700 

74 950 74,950 

1,378,300 1,378,300 

1,378,300 1,378,300 

(1,303,350) (12303,350) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 15,000 1,4202000 

Total other financing sources (uses) 15,000 1,420,000 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($1,288,350) $116,650 

Beginning fund balance 

Ending fund balance 
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Actual Amounts 

$200 
100,000 

1002200 

408,178 
160,189 

568,367 

(468,167) 

124202000 

1,420,000 

951,833 

197,312 

$12149,145 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

($50) 
25,300 

25,250 

970,122 
(160,189) 

809,933 

835,183 

$835,183 



REVENUES: 
Charges for services 
Intergovernmental 
Use of money and property 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Administration 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
STREETS AND SIGNALS FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR nm YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

$310,000 $310,000 
630,000 2,646,551 

2,400 2,400 
642,239 

942,400 32601,190 

783,199 770,064 
3,504,300 7,614,322 

4,287,499 8,384,386 

{32345,099} {4,783,196} 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 2,913,500 3,8622687 

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,913,500 3,862,687 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE {$431,599} {$920,509} 

Beginning fund balance 

Ending fund balance 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
Actual Amounts (Negative) 

$173,504 ($136,496) 
2,212,522 (434,029) 

2,021 (379) 
706,045 63,806 

3,094,092 {507,098} 

757,865 12,199 
6,560,633 1,053,689 

7,318,498 1,065,888 

{ 4,224,406} 558,790 

3,607,820 {254,867) 

3,607,820 {254,867) 

(616,586) $303,923 

1,655,152 

$1,038,566 



REVENUES: 
Charges for services 
Intergovernmental 
Use of money and property 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Public works 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

$540,399 $540,399 

7,000 6,000 
50,000 50,000 

597,399 596,399 

58,012 56,937 
1,850,000 1,850,000 

1,908,012 1,906,937 

0,310,613} 0,310,538} 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 73,013 71,938 

Total other financing sources (uses) 73,013 712938 

NETCHANGEINFUNDBALANCE ($1,237,600} ($1,238,600) 

Beginning fund balance 

Ending fund balance 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
Actual Amounts (Negative) 

$529,251 ($11,148) 

5,510 (490) 
28 (49,972) 

534,789 (61,610} 

58,204 (1,267) 
1,850,000 

58,204 1,848,733 

476,585 1,787,123 

71,938 

71,938 

548,523 $1,787,123 

4,853,225 

$52401,748 



REVENUES: 
Property taxes 
Use of money and property 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Debt service: 
Principal retirement 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
DEBT SERVICE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original 

$670,000 
1,890 

671,890 

Final 

$670,000 
1 890 

6712890 

510,000 
218,667 

728,667 

{56,7772 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from bonds 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE {$56,7772 

Beginning fund balance 

Ending fund balance 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
Actual Amounts (Negative) 

$636,615 ($33,385) 
1,529 (361) 

638,144 {33,7462 

3,394,767 (2,884,767) 
237,468 {18,8012 

3,632,235 {2,903,5682 

{2,994,091) (2,937,3142 

2,055,000 2,055,000 

2,055,000 2,055,000 

(939,091) {$882,314) 

1,531,355 

$592,264 



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Supplementary Information 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

The City maintains the following Other Governmental Funds: 

Special Revenue Funds 

Vehicle Abatement - This fund tracks the receipt of abandoned vehicle fees and the expenditures 
necessary for the removal and disposal of abandoned vehicles. 

Senior Transportation - This program provides transportation options for senior and the disabled in 
Lafayette, Moraga and Orinda. Funding is provided through grants, contributions and rider fees. 

Low and Moderate Income Housing - Tracks resources allocated to low and moderate income housing 
in Lafayette. This fund was formed in February 2012 when the City elected to be the housing successor 
agency on the tails of the dissolution ofredevelopment agencies. 

Gas Tax - Records and tracks gas tax monies received from the State of California under Street and 
Highways Code Sections 2105, 2106, 2107, 2107.5, and 7360. Revenue allocations are based on 
population. Eligible expenditure include the construction and maintenance of streets. 

Measure J Return to Source-This fund accounts for the City's share of the proceeds of a one-half cent 
sales tax increase approved by Contra Costa County voters in 2004. Funds can be used for transportation 
purposes, including transportation planning and street construction and maintenance. 

Supplemental Law Enforcement - This program provides supplemental law enforcement services to the 
City through funding provided by AB 3229. The City is required to use the revenue to provide front line 
municipal police services. Funding must be considered separate and apart from the general fund budget 
process. 

Special Assessment Districts: 

Street Lighting - This program provides funds through a maintenance district assessment process to 
maintain 82 street lights in eleven zones. The budget expense for street lights is not distributed by 
zone, since the assessments are not based on this budget, but rather on the rates charged by PG&E. 
Property assessments are collected and distributed to the City by the County. 

Core Area Maintenance - The Core Area Maintenance District was formed to provide landscaping, 
street lighting, and general maintenance improvements in the downtown. An assessment based on a 
benefit formula is levied against each parcel within the District for the maintenance provided. 

Stormwater Pollution - This fund accounts for revenues and expenditures associated with the annual 
assessment for the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System created countywide in response 
to the 1972 Clean Water Act. 
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ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Restricted cash and investments 
AccoUn.ts receivable 
Interest receivable 
Loans receivable from Successor Agency 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Due to other funds 
Unearned revenue 

Total Liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 

Nonspendable 
Restricted 

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 

CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

JUNE 30, 2017 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Low and 
Vehicle Senior Moderate 

Abatement Trans:eortation Income Housing 

$166,964 
$38,499 $384,974 

52,803 
5 

1,115,757 

$38,504 $219,767 $1,500,731 

$4,644 

4,644 

$38,504 215,123 $1,500,731 

38,504 215,123 1,500,731 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $382504 $219,767 $1,5002731 
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Gas Tax 

$357,862 

302 

$358,164 

$358,164 

358,164 

$358,164 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Assessment Districts 
MeasureJ Supplemental 
Return to Law Street Core Area 

Source Enforcement Lighting Maintenance 

$134,020 $84,094 $164,083 $63,488 
519,325 

29 105 

$653,345 $84,094 $164,112 $63,593 

$1,458 $18,594 

$27,083 

27,083 1,458 18,594 

626,262 $84,094 162,654 44,999 

626,262 84,094 162,654 44,999 

$653,345 $84,094 $164,112 $63,593 
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Storm.water 
Pollution 

$153,142 
52 

$153,194 

$13,544 
5,863 

19,407 

133,787 

133,787 

$153,194 

Total 

$166,964 
1,227,020 

725,270 
493 

1,115,757 

$3,235,504 

$38,240 
5,863 

27,083 

71,186 

3,164,318 

3,164,318 

$3,235,504 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Low and 
Vehicle Senior Moderate 

Abatement Trans2ortation Income Housing 

REVENUES 
Property taxes 
Other taxes 
Charges for services $20,009 
Intergovernmental 109,864 
Fines, forfeitures and penalties $12,321 
Use of money and property 17 
Miscellaneous 18,795 

Total Revenues 12,338 148,668 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Police services 8,934 
Public works 
Senior transportation 162,550 
Engineering 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 8,934 162,550 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 3,404 {13,8822 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 45,000 
Transfers (out) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 45,000 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 3,404 31,118 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES 35,100 184,005 $1,500,731 

ENDING FUND BALANCES $38,504 $215,123 $1,500,731 
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Gas Tax 

$484,029 

1,164 

485,193 

485,193 

U,387,5032 

{l,387,5032 

(902,310) 

1,260,474 

$358,164 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Assessment Districts 
Measure J Supplemental 
Return to Law Street Core Area Storm water 

Source Enforcement Lighting Maintenance Pollution Total 

$21,162 $226,075 $324,184 $571,421 
$528,575 1,012,604 

20,009 
$129,324 38,249 277,437 

12,321 
112 407 202 1,902 

16,014 4,818 39,627 

528,575 129,324 21,274 242,496 367,453 1,935,321 

532,810 541,744 
14,776 357,468 542,276 914,520 

162,550 
88,162 88,162 

13,961 13,961 

88,162 532,810 14,776 371,429 542,276 1,720,937 

440,413 (403,486) 6,498 (128,933) (174,823) 214,384 

432,810 111,876 589,686 
(715,322) {2, 102,8251 

{715,3221 432,810 111,876 {l,513,1391 

(274,909) 29,324 6,498 (17,057) (174,823) (1,298,755) 

901,171 54,770 156,156 62,056 308,610 4,463,073 

$626,262 $84,094 $162,654 $44,999 $133,787 $3,164,318 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

BUDGETED NON-MAJOR FUNDS 

COJ\IBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

SENIOR 
VEHICLE ABATEMENT TRANSPORTATION 

Variance Variance 
Positive Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative} Budget Actual (Negative} 

REVENUES 
Property taxes 
Other taxes 
Charges for services $12,000 ($12,000) $22,500 $20,009 ($2,491) 
Intergovernmental 109,864 109,864 
Licenses and permits 
Fines, forfeitures and penalties $12,321 12,321 
Use of money and property 17 17 97,520 18,795 (78,725) 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 12,000 12,338 338 120,020 148,668 28,648 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Police services 9,131 8,934 197 
Parking services 
Public works 
Senior transportation 200,734 162,550 38,184 
Engineering 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 9,131 8,934 197 200,734 162,550 38,184 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 2,869 3,404 535 ~80,7142 (13,8822 66,832 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 45,000 45,000 
Transfers out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 45,000 45,000 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $2,869 3,404 $535 ~$35,7142 31,118 $66,832 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 35,100 184,005 

ENDING FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) $38,504 $215,123 
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LOW AND MODERATE 
INCOME HOUSING 

Budget Actual 

$1,500,731 

$1,500,731 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) Budget 

$521,079 

1,500 

522,579 

522,579 

(1,642,3702 

{l,642,3702 

{$1,119,791} 

GAS TAX 

Actual 

$484,029 

1,164 

485,193 

485,193 

p,387,5032 

p,387,503} 

(902,310) 

1,260,474 

$358,164 
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Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

MEASUREJ 
RETURN TO SOURCE 

Budget Actual 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

($37,050) $475,000 $528,575 $53,575 

(336) 

(37,386) 475,000 528,575 53,575 

89,368 88,162 1,206 

89,368 88,162 1,206 

(37,386) 385,632 440,413 54,781 

254,867 (715,3222 {715,322} 

254,867 (715,3222 {715,3222 

$217,481 ($329,6902 (274,909) $54,781 

901,171 

$626,262 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

BUDGETED NON-MAJOR FUNDS 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS 
SUPPLEMENTAL 

LAW ENFORCEMENT STREET LIGHTING 
Variance Variance 
Positive Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative) 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $20,703 $21,162 $459 
Other taxes 
Charges for services 
Intergovernmental $100,000 $129,324 $29,324 
Licenses and permits 
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 
Use of money and property 140 112 (28) 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 100,000 129,324 29,324 20,843 21,274 431 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Police services 532,810 532,810 
Parking services 
Public works 25,000 14,776 10,224 
Senior transportation 
Engineering 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 532,810 532,810 25,000 14,776 10,224 

E;XCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES (432,810) (403,486) 29,324 (4,157) 6,498 10,655 

OTIIBR FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 432,810 432,810 
Transfers out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 432,810 432,810 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 29,324 $29,324 ($4,157) 6,498 $10,655 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 54,770 156,156 

ENDING FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) $84,094 $162,654 
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ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS 

CORE AREA MAINTENANCE STORMWATER POLLUTION 
Variance Variance 
Positive Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative) 

$221,000 $226,075 $5,075 $373,930 $324,184 ($49,746) 

38,249 38,249 

500 407 (93) 363 202 (161) 
16,014 16,014 4,818 4,818 

221,500 242,496 20,996 374,293 367,453 (6,8402 

407,257 357,468 49,789 488,398 542,276 (53,878) 

20,000 13,961 6,039 

427,257 371,429 55,828 488,398 542,276 (53,8782 

(205,7572 (128,9332 76,824 (114,1052 (174,823) (60,7182 

186,308 111,876 (74,432) 

186,308 111,876 (74,4322 

~$19,4492 (17,057) $2,392 ($114,1052 (174,823) ($60,7182 

62,056 308,610 

$44,999 $133,787 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
Supplementary Information 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

GASB Statement 34 requires that Pension Funds and Agency Funds be presented separately form the 
Government-wide and Fund financial statements. 

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS 

Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency Private Purpose Trust Fund 

Redevelopment Agency - Tracks costs and revenues associated with the Successor Agency to 
the former Lafayette Redevelopment Agency. 

Redevelopment Debt Service - Tracks all outstanding debt obligations for the Successor Agency 
to the former Lafayette Redevelopment Agency tax increment bonds. 

AGENCY FUNDS 

Lamorinda Fee and Financing Authority- In 1986, the Cities of Lafayette and Orinda and the Town of 
Moraga entered into a joint powers agreement for the purpose of assessing transportation fees in 
accordance with the impact of new developments in Lamorinda. As the Treasurer for this agency, this 
fund is maintained to track fees from Lafayette, Moraga, and Orinda, as well as their expenditure on joint 
jurisdictional projects that address various bicycle, pedestrian, road, and signal projects as described in 
the LFF A Expenditure Plan. 

Lamorinda School Bus Transportation-In 1994 the cities and school district in Lafayette, Moraga and 
Orinda entered into a joint powers agreement (JP A) for the purpose of overseeing and operating a joint 
school bus program to serve K-8 students in order to relieve traffic congestion. The JP A was revised n 
2007 to include high school students. It was revised again in 2009 to include three years of bus service 
for the Piedmont Unified School District while it retrofitted three elementary schools; this agreement 
ended in June 2012. The City of Lafayette is the Treasurer for this agency and in this capacity, maintains 
a fund to track the sources and uses of program monies. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUND 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

ASSETS 

Restricted cash and investments 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Interest payable 
Unearned revenue 
Loans payable to the City's General Fund 
Loans payable to the Housing Successor Agency Fund 
Loans payable to the Parking Fund 
Long-term debt - due in less than one year 
Long-term debt - due in more than one year 

Total Liabilities 

NETPOSffiON 

Held in trust for private purpose 

Redevelopment 
Agency 

$1,299,202 

$1,299,202 

$6,142,874 
1,115,757 

794,831 

8,053,462 

($6,754,260) 
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Redevelopment 
Debt 

Service 

$1,441,675 

$1,441,675 

$686,009 

2,548,088 
34,374,118 

37,608,215 

($36,166,540) 

Total 

$2,740,877 

$2,740,877 

$686,009 

6,142,874 
1,115,757 

794,831 
2,548,088 

34,374,118 

4516611677 

($42,920,800) 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUND 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Redevelopment 
Redevelopment Debt 

Agenc~ Service Total 

ADDITIONS 

Property taxes $3,562,271 $3,562,271 

Total Additions 3,562,271 3,562,271 

DEDUCTIONS 

Administration 75,150 75,150 
Interest expense and fiscal charges 73,909 $1,532,638 1,606,547 

Total Deductions 149,059 1,532,638 1,681,697 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers in 2,263,070 2,263,070 
Transfers (out) {2,263,0702 {2,263,0702 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) {2,263,0702 2,263,070 

Change in Net Position 1,150,142 730,432 1,880,574 

BEGINNING NET POSITION (DEFICITS) (As restated) {7,904,4022 (36,896,9722 {44,801,3742 

ENDING NET POSITION (DEFICITS) {$6,754,2602 {$36, 166,5402 {$42,920,8002 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
AGENCY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
FOR THE YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Balance Balance 
June 30, 2016 Additions Reductions June 30, 2017 

Lamorinda Fee and Financing Authori~ 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $247,851 $194,341 $247,851 $194,341 
Receivables: 

Accounts 15,052 15,052 
Interest 72 28 72 28 

Due from members 917 917 

Total Assets $248,840 $209,421 $248,840 $209,421 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable $248,840 $7,632 $248,840 $7,632 
Due to members 201,789 201,789 

Total Liabilities $248,840 $209,421 $248,840 $209,421 

Lamorinda School Bus TransEortation Agencx 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $978,598 $575,896 $978,598 $575,896 
Receivables: 

Accounts 138,424 410,895 138,424 410,895 
Interest 432 166 432 166 

Other assets 500 500 500 500 

Total Assets $1,117,954 $987,457 $1,117,954 $987,457 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable $249,207 $286,359 $249,207 $286,359 
Compensated absences 11,895 11,895 
Unearned revenue 192,344 137,959 192,344 137,959 
Due to members 676,403 551,243 676,403 551,243 

Total Liabilities $1,117,954 $987,456 $1,117,954 $987,456 

All Agencx Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $1,226,449 $770,237 $1,226,449 $770,237 
Receivables: 

Accounts 138,424 425,947 138,424 425,947 
Interest 504 194 504 194 

Due from members 917 917 
Other assets 500 500 500 500 

Total Assets $1,366,794 $1,196,878 $1,366,794 $1,196,878 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $498,047 $293,991 $498,047 $293,991 
Compensated absences 11,895 11,895 
Unearned revenue 192,344 137,959 192,344 137,959 
Due to members 676,403 753,032 676,403 753,032 

Total Liabilities $1,366,794 $1,196,877 $1,366,794 $1,196,877 

90 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a context 
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information says about the City's overall fmancial health. In contrast to the fmancial section, 
the statistical section information is not subject to independent audit. 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's financial 
performance and well being have changed over time: 

1. Government-Wide Revenues by Source - Last Ten Fiscal Years 
2. Government-Wide Expenses by Function - Last Ten Fiscal Years 
3. General Governmental Revenues by Source - Last Ten Fiscal Years 
4. Tax Revenue By Source - Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Revenue Capacity 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most significant local revenue 
sources, the property tax and sales tax: 

1. General Governmental Expenditures by Function - Last Ten Fiscal Years 
2. Net Position by Component 
3. Changes in Net Position 
4. Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
5. Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years 
6. Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 
7. Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates -Last Ten Fiscal Years 
8. Principal Sales Tax Producers 
9. Principal Property Taxpayers 
10. Property Tax Levies & Collections 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current levels of 
outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future: 

1. Ratio of Debt Outstanding - Last Ten Fiscal Years 
2. Direct and Overlapping Debt 
3. Legal Debt Margin Information 
4. Pledged-Revenue Coverage 

Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment 
within which the City's financial activities take place: 

1. Demographic Statistics 
2. Annual Average Employment and Unemployment Rates 
3. Principal Employers 
4. Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function 

Operating Information 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in 
the City's fmancial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs: 

1. Operating Indicators by Function/Program 
2. Capital Asset Statistics by Function - Last Ten Years 
3. Miscellaneous Statistical Data 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE REVENUES BY SOURCE 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Program Revenues 

Operating 

Operating Grants 
Fiscal Year Charges for Service and Contribution 

2008 2,411,113 200,000 

2009 2,008,121 149,609 

2010 2,025,983 149,609 

2011 2,296,083 149,609 

2012 2,724,526 149,609 

2013 4,500,112 100,000 

2014 3,609,626 179,938 

2015 4,643,362 751,836 

2016 4,415,302 907,697 

2017 4,294,281 992,416 

Source: City of Lafayette Finance Department. 
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Capital Grants and 
Contributions 

480,107 

1,472,741 

1,356,377 

365,208 

2,231,839 

848,918 

533,050 

893,741 

619,102 

2,217,522 



General Revenues 

Unrestricted 
Motor Vehicle Investment 

Taxes In Lieu Earnings Other Transfers In Total 

13,244,239 1,949,901 1,888,359 863,279 20,000 $21,056,998 

13,732,903 2,036,467 1,222,093 645,715 20,000 $21,287,649 

13,599,384 2,089,830 698,747 815,830 20,000 $20,755,760 

13,746,982 2,149,290 660,086 1,305,381 25,000 $20,697,639 

13,489,083 2,035,206 590,727 958,823 30,000 $22,209' 813 

10,944,451 2,058,283 157,127 1,547,216 30,000 $20, 186, 107 

11,590,265 2,176,084 149,827 1,963,638 30,000 $20,232,428 

12,411,033 2,343,990 212,167 493,248 30,000 $21,779,377 

13,948,404 2,523,771 269,718 255,721 30,000 $22,969' 715 

13,582,314 2,706,631 352,494 952,764 55,000 $25,153,422 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE EXPENSES BY FUNCTION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

City Council, 
Commissions & 

Community Administration* 
Fiscal Year Support *** Police Services Public Works 

2008 1,840,706 3,524,051 3,635,692 

2009 1,087,322 3,457,033 3,880,430 

2010 1,055,156 3,407,361 3,850,434 

2011 1,051,368 3,012,061 3,879,299 

2012 1,156,123 2,660,629 3,917,326 

2013 1,187,756 3,411,836 4,020,045 

2014 1,262,843 3,815,040 3,987,257 

2015 *** 1,207,205 2,064,648 5,272,182 

2016 1,358,648 2,352,606 5,321,731 

2017 1,336,345 2,842,683 5,455,796 

Source:. City of Lafayette Finance Department. 

* The Redevelopment Agency was dissolved as of January 31, 2012. 
* * Comprises parking services, senior transportation, and library operations 
***Infrastructure as its own program was found to be incorrect per the Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board and was rolled into Planning & Engineering. 

2,470,211 

2,342,472 

2,300,946 

2,394,348 

2,250,034 

3,332,889 

2,475,665 

2,053,516 

2,238,759 

3,148,160 

**** Comprises City Manager, City Attorney, City Clerk, Finance, Shared Costs, IT, Shared Equity, 
and Insurance. 
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Planning & Recreation 
Infrastructure Engineering Debt Service Other** Programs Total 

2,868,201 1,630,903 1,774,358 303,832 1,000,401 $19,048,355 

3,187,402 1,447,089 2,632,165 3,240,664 924,163 $22,198,740 

3,334,599 2,770,095 3,067,390 855,004 950,791 $21,591,776 

4,166,614 1,710,675 3,150,305 1,122,154 983,652 $21,470,476 

3,412,239 1,969,349 2,101,477 771,003 963,224 $19,201,404 

3,790,761 1,103,616 284,950 932,134 988,395 $19,052,382 

4,649,195 841,799 271,508 1,093,381 1,064,898 $19,461,586 

0 6,691,105 252,475 1,297,309 1,224,490 $20,062,930 

0 6,907,346 230,625 1,389,465 1,288,899 $21,088,079 

0 6,982,011 169,164 1,314,639 1,200,758 $22,449,556 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fiscal Year Taxes Parking Intergovernmental 

2008 14,710,472 199,507 680,107 
2009 15,178,772 214,306 1,622,350 
2010 14,593,027 198,424 1,505,986 
2011 15,186,756 296,088 514,817 
2012 14,756,473 327,353 2,381,448 
2013 13,473,632 226,092 948,918 
2014 13,766,347 242,324 712,989 
2015* 14,755,023 0 977,321 
2016 15,847,961 0 761,625 
2017 13,284,919 0 5,294,517 

Source: City of Lafayette Finance Department 

Charges for 
Services 

1,023,816 
883,947 
813,698 
925,951 

1,268,191 
1,247,703 
1,478,690 
2,731,507 
2,594,541 
2,697,602 

* In 2015, parking and developer fees were consolidated into the charges for service category, 
while license and permit revenue was broken out from charges for services. 
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Licenses and 
Permits 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

295,426 
351,820 
334,014 



Fines and Investment 
Forfeitures Income Developer Fees Miscellaneous Total Revenues 

295,989 1,888,359 342,152 863,279 $20,003,681 
387,319 1,222,093 168,502 645,715 $20,323,004 
437,299 698,747 234,357 815,831 $19,297,369 
423,893 660,086 269,231 1,305,380 $19,582,202 
451,506 590,727 377,462 958,823 $21,111,983 
382,008 157,127 1,558,694 1,547,216 $19,541,390 
371,372 182,394 416,968 1,931,070 $19,102,154 
316,406 212,167 0 1,161,504 $20,449,354 
251,721 301,157 0 1,689,390 $21,798,215 
270,038 380,977 0 1,579,554 $23,841,621 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
TAX REVENUE BY SOURCE 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Transient 
Fiscal Year Property Sales & Use Occupancy Franchise 

2008 7,300,248 * 2,645,234 615,415 1,140,008 

2009 8,042,309 * 2,394,096 493,812 1,296,308 

2010 7,372,494 * 2,261,525 413,796 1,538,647 

2011 7,680,137 * 2,218,200 451,157 1,598,142 

2012 6,763,452 * 2,561,057 522,777 1,609,145 

2013 5,259,337 2,667,194 562,018 1,622,330 

2014 5,102,514 2,756,952 630,576 1,664,512 

2015 5,427,316 2,876,935 701,718 1,836,029 

2016 5,722,675 3,193,914 745,707 2,165,762 

2017 5,929,562 3,008,076 733,429 2,222,040 

Change 
2008-2017 -18.8% 13.7% 19.2% 94.9% 

Source: City of Lafayette Finance Department 

* These figures include property tax revenue received by the Redevelopment Agency of the 

City of Lafayette, which was eliminated in February 2012. For comparison purposes, an additional 

table is shown below that reflects property tax revenues without the portion related to the 

Redevelopment Agency of the City of Lafayette. 

Fiscal Year 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

Change 

2008-2017 

Property 

4,833,134 

5,006,643 

4,250,197 

4,791,347 

4,746,448 

5,259,337 
5,102,514 

5,427,316 

5,722,675 
5,929,562 

22.7% 
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Property 
Transfer Gas Tax MeasureJ Total Revenues 

215,548 442,236 401,882 $12,760,571 
155,934 404,980 354,866 $13,142,305 
177,851 401,734 337,150 $12,503,197 
170,178 578,865 340,787 $13,037,466 
207,002 690,985 366,849 $12,721,267 
237,799 580,172 486,499 $11,415,349 
292,045 744,128 399,536 $11,590,263 
349,633 703,594 515,808 $12,411,033 
333,647 553,383 609,103 $13,324,191 
379,208 484,029 528,575 $13,284,919 

75.9% 9.5% 31.5% 4.1% 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Council, 
Commissions, & 

Community 
Fiscal Year Support Police Services Public Works 

2008 1,840,706 3,563,952 2,480,845 
2009 1,087,322 3,837,921 2,329,401 
2010 1,055,156 3,825,308 2,289,105 
2011 1,051,368 3,837,772 2,367,914 
2012 1,156,123 3,865,518 2,221,207 
2013 1,187,756 3,973,124 3,312,392 
2014 1,262,843 3,945,555 2,462,591 

2015 * 1,198,457 5,056,410 2,210,055 
2016 1,339,477 5,110,272 2,876,882 
2017 1,346,360 5,232,949 2,982,644 

Source: City of Lafayette Finance Department. 

Planning & 
Engineering Administration 

1,628,148 3,432,746 
1,439,204 3,400,568 
2,770,095 3,371,846 
1,710,675 2,967,272 
1,969,349 2,587,138 
1,103,616 3,398,415 
831,314 3,815,664 

1,871,739 2,070,041 
1,889,844 2,327,342 
1,918,701 2,789,757 

* Insurance & Claims combined with Administration. Rent & Other Expenses represents the costs for parking, 
senior transportation, and library operations. 
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Rent& Other Insurance & 

Capital Projects Debt Service Expenses Claims Total 

15,923,167 2,202,864 233,961 69,871 $31,376,260 
17,363,838 2,898,962 3,130,247 110,417 $35,597,880 
14,260,968 3,715,617 751,333 103,672 $32,143,100 
8,559,572 3,844,398 1,050,903 71,251 $25,461,125 
3,847,573 3,320,059 735,352 35,651 $19,737,970 
2,999,602 798,914 748,289 183,845 $17,705,953 
5,838,737 731,525 798,936 181,460 $19,868,625 
4,898,679 732,338 1,297,314 0 $19,335,033 
3,737,470 730,168 1,384,181 0 $19,395,636 
9,016,524 3,632,235 1,309,925 0 $28,229,095 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

Governmental activities: 

Invested in capital assets 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Total governmental activities net position 

2008 

$51,772,176 

13,851,410 

18,462,545 

$84,086, 131 

102 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 

2009 2010 2011 

$57,240,735 $68,757,999 $54,267,231 

5,587,771 (7,125,956) 13,502,081 

20,326,534 20,666,981 13,731,874 

$83,155,040 $82,299,024 $81,501,186 



Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

$98,939,504 $98,560,464 $99,272,004 $99,751,041 $99,141,344 $103,942,613 

16,571,443 19,381,805 21,379,235 7,255,961 7,932,301 4,149,103 

11,051,388 9,724,019 6,996,232 23,443,139 25,228,894 26,860,110 

$126,562,335 $127 ,666,288 $127,647,471 $130,450,141 $132,302,539 $134,951,826 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 

2008 2009 2010 2011 

Expenses: 

Governmental activities: 

Council, commissions & community support $1,840,706 $1,087,322 $1,055,156 $1,051,368 

Administration 3,524,051 3,457,033 3,407,361 3,012,061 

Police services 3,635,692 3,880,430 3,850,434 3,879,299 

Public works 2,470,211 2,342,472 2,300,946 2,394,348 

Infrastructure - depreciation 2,868,201 3,187,402 3,334,599 4,166,614 

Planning & engineering 1,630,903 1,447,089 2,770,095 1,710,675 

Interest & debt charges 1,774,358 2,632,165 3,067,390 3,150,305 

Other 303,832 3,240,664 855,004 1,122,154 

Total governmental activities expenses 18,047,954 21,274,577 20,640,985 20,486,824 

Program revenues: 

Governmental activities: 

Charges for services: 

Council, commissions & community support 0 0 0 0 

Administration 0 0 0 0 

Police services 50,269 52,200 47,254 37,441 

Public works 0 0 0 0 

Infrastructure - depreciation 0 0 0 0 

Planning &engineering 1,327,527 1,011,276 1,011,235 1,168,206 

Interest & debt charges 0 0 0 0 

Other 0 0 0 0 

Operating grants and contributions 200,000 149,609 149,609 149,609 

Capital grants and contributions 480,107 1,472,741 1,356,377 365,208 
Total governmental activities 

program revenues 2,057,903 2,685,826 2,564,475 1,720,464 

Net revenues (expenses): (15,990,051) (18,588,751) (18,076,510) (18,766,360) 

General revenues and other changes in net assets: 

Governmental activities: 

Taxes: 

Property tax and assessments 7,300,248 8,042,309 7,843,392 7,680,137 

Sales tax 3,047,116 2,748,962 2,598,675 2,558,987 

Franchise tax 1,140,008 1,296,308 1,538,647 1,598,142 

Transient occupancy tax 615,415 493,812 413,796 451,157 

Vehicle code fines 284,161 376,292 426,865 413,428 

Motor vehicle in lieu tax 1,949,901 2,036,467 2,089,830 2,149,290 

Highway users tax 442,236 404,980 401,734 578,865 

Trans fer tax 215,548 155,934 177,851 170,178 

Business registrations 0 0 0 0 

Parking revenues 199,507 214,306 198,424 296,088 

Investment income 1,888,359 1,222,093 698,747 660,086 

Other 863,279 645,715 815,830 1,305,381 

Transfers in 20,000 20,000 20,000 25,000 

Total governmental activities 17,965,778 17,657,178 17,223,791 17,886,739 

Extraordinary Gain - Successor Agency Trust for Assets 

of Former Redevelopment Agency 

Changes in net position $1,975,727 ($931,573) ($852,719) ($879,621) 

*The Redevelopment Agency was dissolved as of January 31, 2012. 104 



Fiscal year ended June 30, 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

$1,156,123 $1,187,756 $1,262,843 $1,207,205 $1,358,648 $1,336,345 
2,660,629 3,411,836 3,815,040 2,064,648 2,352,606 2,842,683 
3,917,326 4,020,045 3,987,257 5,272,182 5,321,731 5,455,796 

2,250,034 3,332,889 2,475,665 2,053,516 2,238,759 3,148,160 
3,412,239 3,790,761 4,649,195 0 0 0 
1,969,349 1,103,616 841,799 6,691,105 6,907,346 6,982,011 
2,101,477 284,950 271,508 252,475 230,625 169,164 

771,003 932,134 1,093,381 1,297,309 1,389,465 1,314,639 
18,238,180 18,063,987 18,396,688 18,838,440 19,799,180 21,248,798 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 14,648 18,118 18,722 

34,857 630,325 637,454 154,260 129,316 101,073 
0 0 0 84,729 84,173 92,998 
0 0 0 0 0 0 

1,621,839 2,784,172 1,871,901 2,593,636 2,329,312 2,210,929 
0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 496,066 465,089 570,258 

149,609 100,000 179,938 751,836 907,697 992,416 

2,231,839 848,918 533,050 893,741 619,102 2,217,522 

4,038,144 4,363,415 3,222,343 4,988,916 4,552,807 6,203,918 

(14,200,036) (13,700,572) (15,174,345) (13,849,524) (15,246,373) (15,044,880) 

6,763,452 4,788,439 5,102,515 5,427,316 6,346,889 6,226,957 
2,927,906 3,153,693 3,156,488 3,392,743 3,803,017 3,536,651 
1,609,145 1,622,330 1,664,512 1,836,029 2,165,761 2,222,040 

522,777 562,018 630,576 701,718 745,707 733,429 
440,463 NIA NIA 0 0 0 

2,035,206 2,058,283 2,176,084 2,343,990 2,523,771 2,706,631 

690,985 580,172 744,129 703,594 553,383 484,029 
207,002 237,799 292,045 349,633 333,647 379,208 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
327,353 NIA NIA 0 0 0 
590,727 157,127 149,827 212,167 269,718 352,494 
958,823 1,547,216 1,963,638 493,248 255,721 952,764 

30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 55,000 

17,103,839 14,737,077 15,909,814 15,490,438 17,027,614 17,649,203 

42,082,740 

$44,986,543 $1,036,505 $735,469 $1,640,914 $1,781,241 $2,604,323 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

FUNDBALANCESOFGOVERNMENTALFUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

General fund: 
N onspendab le 
Restricted 
Committed 

Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total general fund 

All other govermnental funds: 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 

Unassigned 
Total all other governmental funds 

2008 

$0 
0 
0 

6,580,742 
9,054,144 

$15,634,886 

$0 
12,001,834 

0 
5,550,476 

0 
$17,552,310 
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2009 2010 2011 

$0 $0 $0 
0 0 0 

0 0 0 

6,111,229 8,359,135 6,623,641 
9,228,645 7,868,890 10, 752, 189 

$15,339,874 $16,228,025 $17,375,830 

$0 $0 $0 

5,721,378 (7,965,648) (12,886,180) 

0 0 0 

6,014,749 5,987,893 3,906,697 

0 0 0 
$11,736,127 ($1,977,755) ($8,979,483) 



Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

$6,022,847 $6,509,859 $6,073,032 $6,086,362 $6,154,010 $6,163,882 
0 42,880 6,280 23,110 143,431 299,472 

1,509,476 690,944 3,191,939 3,117,955 2,797,600 3,497,362 

250,000 2,724,004 0 0 0 0 
10,391,624 7,388,013 6,804,724 8,267,328 9,766,041 9,522,320 

$18,173,947 $17,355,700 $16,075,975 $17,494,755 $18,861,082 $19,483,036 

$624,969 $144,141 $2,211,773 $1,209 $1,000 $0 
4,308,582 4,602,990 2,973,306 7,254,752 9,083,166 5,221,774 
4,105,569 7,440,055 7,545,361 6,315,777 5,553,824 6,919,098 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

464,382 0 0 0 0 (402,310) 
$9,503,502 $12,187,186 $12,730,440 $13,571,738 $14,637,990 $11,738,562 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

CHANGESINFUNDBALANCESOFGOVERNMENTALFUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2008 2009 2010 2011 

Revenues: 
Taxes $14,710,472 $15,178,772 $14,593,027 $15,186,756 
Licenses and permits 0 0 0 0 

Intergovernmental 680,107 1,622,350 1,505,986 514,817 
Developer fees 342,152 168,502 234,357 269,231 

Charges for services 1,023,816 883,947 813,698 925,951 
Fines and forfeitures 295,989 387,319 437,299 423,893 
Inves1ment income 1,888,359 1,222,093 698,747 660,086 

Parking 199,507 214,306 198,424 296,088 

Miscellaneous 863,279 645,715 815,831 1,305,380 
Total revenues 20,003,681 20,323,004 19,297,369 19,582,202 

Expenditures 

Current: 
Council, commissions & community support 1,840,706 1,087,322 1,055,156 1,051,368 

Police services 3,563,952 3,837,921 3,825,308 3,837,772 
Public works 2,480,845 2,329,401 2,289,105 2,367,914 
Planning & Engineering 1,628,148 1,439,204 2,770,095 1,710,675 

Administration 3,432,746 3,400,568 3,371,846 2,967,272 
Capital projects 15,923,167 17,363,838 14,260,968 8,559,572 
Debt service 

Principal 435,000 530,000 665,000 710,000 
Interest 1,767,864 2,368,962 3,050,617 3,134,398 

Rent & other expenses 233,961 3,130,247 751,333 1,050,903 

Insurance & claims 69,871 110,417 103,672 71,251 
Total expenditures 31,376,260 35,597,880 32,143,100 25,461,125 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over (under) 
expenditures (11,372,579) (15,274,876) (12,845,731) (5,878,923) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 4,728,129 5,421,247 4,678,918 6,246,283 

Transfers out ( 4, 708, 129) (5,401,247) (4,658,918) (6,221,283) 

Proceeds from bonds 0 9,600,000 0 0 
Bond issuance costs 0 (456,319) 0 0 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 20,000 9,163,681 20,000 25,000 

Extraordinary loss 
Net change in fund balances ($11,352,579) ($6,111,195) ($12,825,731) ($5,853,923) 

Debt service as a percentage of 

noncapital expenditures 14% 16% 21% 23% 
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

$14,756,473 $13,473,632 $13,766,347 $14,755,023 $15,847,961 $13,284,919 
0 0 0 295,426 351,820 334,014 

2,381,448 948,918 712,989 977,321 761,625 5,294,517 
377,462 1,558,694 416,968 0 0 0 

1,268,191 1,247,703 1,478,690 2,731,507 2,594,541 2,697,602 
451,506 382,008 371,372 316,406 251,721 270,038 
590,727 157,127 182,394 212,167 301,157 380,977 
327,353 226,092 242,324 0 0 0 
958,823 1,547,216 1,931,070 1,161,504 1,689,390 1,579,554 

21, 111,983 19,541,390 19,102,154 20,449,354 21,798,215 23,841,621 

1,156,123 1,187,756 1,262,843 1,198,457 1,339,477 1,346,360 
3,865,518 3,973,124 3,945,555 5,056,410 5,110,272 5,232,949 

2,221,207 3,312,392 2,462,591 2,210,055 2,876,882 2,982,644 
1,969,349 1,103,616 831,314 1,871,739 1,889,844 1,918,701 
2,587,138 3,398,415 3,815,664 2,070,041 2,327,342 2,789,757 
3,847,573 2,999,602 5,838,737 4,898,679 3,737,470 9,016,524 

780,000 495,000 450,000 470,000 490,000 3,394,767 
2,540,059 303,914 281,525 262,338 240,168 237,468 

735,352 748,289 798,936 1,297,314 1,384, 181 1,309,925 
35,651 183,845 181,460 0 0 0 

19,737,970 17,705,953 19,868,625 19,335,033 19,395,636 28,229,095 

1,374,013 1,835,437 (766,471) 1,114,321 2,402,579 (4,387,474) 

4,291,955 4,378,465 5,384,641 3,628,519 3,827,512 5,739,444 
(4,261,955) ( 4,348,465) (5,354,641) (3,598,519) (3,797,512) (5,684,444) 

0 0 0 0 0 2,055,000 
0 0 0 0 0 0 

30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 2,110,000 

$1,404,013 $1,865,437 ($736,471) $1,144,321 $2,432,579 ($2,277,474) 

21% 5% 5% 5% 5% 19% 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 
TAXABLE PROPERTY 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

$8,000,000,000 

$7,000,000,000 • Secured • Unsecured • Nonunitary 

$6,000,000,000 

$5,000,000,000 

$4,000,000,000 

$3,000,000,000 

$2,000,000,000 

$1,000,000,000 

Fiscal Year 

$0 
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

ended June 30 Secured Unsecured Nonunitary 

2008 $5,058,232,658 $49,725,844 $1,419,775 
2009 5,364,553,364 53,566,252 1,419,775 
2010 5,539,773,185 57,895,020 1,419,775 
2011 5,597,639,658 54,360,490 650,940 
2012 5,558,785,347 52,407,020 650,940 
2013 5,619,888,737 54,963,402 650,940 
2014 5,949,707,469 57,918,585 650,940 
2015 6,416,076,847 57,781,280 991,026 
2016 6,907,551,196 64,879,026 991,026 
2017 7,411,943,234 65,184,095 991,026 

Source: Contra Costa County Assessor 2006/07 - 2015/16 Combined Tax Rolls 

* The Taxable Assessed Valuation is the Total Gross Assessed Valuation less Homeowner's 
exemptions. 

Note: 
In 1978 the voters of the State of California passed Proposition 13 which limited property taxes to a 

maximum rate of 1 % based upon the assessed value of the property being taxed. Each year, the 
assessed value of property may be increased by an "inflation factor" (limited to a maximum increase of 

2%). With few exceptions, property is only reassessed at the time that it is sold to a new owner. At 

that point, the new assessed value is reassessed at the purchase price of the property sold. The 
assessed valuation data shown above represents the only data currently available with respect to the 
actual market value of taxable property and is subject to the limitations described above. 
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2015 2016 2017 

Total 
Taxable Assessed Direct 

Value* Rate 

$5, 109,378,277 0.14465 

5,419,539,391 0.14917 
5,599,087,980 0.14754 

5,652,651,088 0.14477 
5,611,843,307 0.13979 
5,675,503,079 0.14168 

6,008,276,994 0.08075 

6,474,849,153 0.07928 
6,973,421,248 0.07614 

7,478, 118,355 0.07513 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Overlapping Rates** 

City's Share of Acalanes Bay Area Contra Costa East Bay 
1% Levy Per Union High Rapid Community Regional Park 

Fiscal Year Prop 13* School District Transit College District 

2008 0.06663 0.02590 0.00760 0.01080 0.00800 

2009 0.06663 0.02890 0.00900 0.00660 0.01000 

2010 0.06662 0.02980 0.00570 0.01260 0.01080 

2011 0.06662 0.03110 0.00310 0.01330 0.00840 

2012 0.06662 0.03330 0.00410 0.01440 0.00710 

2013 0.06662 0.03330 0.00430 0.00870 0.00510 

2014 0.06662 0.03610 0.00750 0.01330 0.00780 

2015 0.06662 0.03500 0.00450 0.02520 0.00850 

2016 0.06662 0.03320 0.00260 0.02200 0.00670 

2017 0.06662 0.03230 0.00800 0.01200 0.00320 

Source: Contra Costa County Assessor 2006/07 - 2015/16 Tax Rate Table 

* City's Share of 1 % Levy is based on the City's share of the general fund tax rate area with the largest 
net taxable value within the City. ERAF general fund tax shifts may not be included in tax ratio figures. 

** Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to property owners within the City. 
Not all overlapping rates apply to all city property owners. 

***Total Direct Rate is the weighted average of all individual direct rates applied by the City preparing the 
statistical section information and excludes revenues derived from aircraft. Beginning in 2013114 the Total 
Direct Rate no longer includes revenue generated from the former redevelopment tax rate areas. 
Challenges to recognized enforceable obligations are assumed to have been resolved during 2012/13. 
For the purposes of this report, residual revenue is assumed to be distributed to the City in the same 
proportions as general fund revenue. 

112 



Overla~~ing Rates** 
Lafayette 

Elementary Orinda Pleasant Hill 
School Lafayette Elementary Recreation & Subtotal Total Direct 
District General Fund Bond Park Overlapping Rate Rate*** 

0.03400 0.02000 0.02370 0.00000 0.13000 0.14465 

0.03300 0.01930 0.02470 0.00000 0.13150 0.14917 

0.03260 0.01300 0.02360 0.00000 0.12810 0.14754 

0.03260 0.01300 0.02440 0.02120 0.14710 0.14477 

0.02790 0.01300 0.02740 0.02550 0.15270 0.13979 

0.02840 0.01300 0.02730 0.02690 0.14700 0.14168 

0.02670 0.01250 0.02550 0.02810 0.15750 0.08075 

0.02410 0.01200 0.02320 0.02580 0.15830 0.07928 

0.02090 0.00900 0.01900 0.02380 0.13720 0.07614 

0.04370 0.00800 0.01650 0.02300 0.14670 0.07513 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
PRINCIPAL SALES TAX PRODUCERS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

FIRM 
Ace Hardware 
Big 0 Tire Stores 
Chevron Service Stations 
Chow Restaurant 
CVS Pharmacy 
Diablo Foods 
Diamond K Gardening Supply 
El Charro Mexican Restaurant 
Insight Resource Group 
Jacksons Wines & Spirits 
Lafayette Park Hotel 
McCaulou' s Department Store 
McDonald's Restaurants 
Metro Lafayette 
Orchard Nursery 
Pet Food Express 
Pizza Antica 
Postino Restaurant 
Safeway Stores 
Shell Service Stations 
The Cooperage American Grille 
Trader Joe's 
Union 76 Service Stations 
Western Data Group 
Whole Foods Market 

Source: MBIA Muni Services Company 
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BUSINESS DESCRIPTION 
Hardware Stores 
Auto Supply Stores 
Service Stations 
Restaurants 
Drug Stores 
Supermarkets 
Nursery 
Restaurants 
Personal Services 
Liquor Stores 
Hotel Food/Bar Sales 
Department Stores 
Fast Food Restaurant 
Restaurants 
Nursery 
Specialty Stores 
Restaurants 
Restaurants 
Supermarkets 
Service Stations 
Restaurants 
Supermarkets 
Service Stations 
Business Services 
Supermarkets 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 
CURRENT FISCAL YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
JUNE 30, 2017 

TaxEa;y:er 

BRE Properties Inc 
Cortese Properties LLC 
Tilden-Lafayette LLC 
Sill-ill Lafayette LP 
Oakwood Athletic Club LLC 
DPW Diablo LP 
Lafayette Park Hotel Associates 
Bay Glen LP 
Brian E and Deanna Moore Trust 
AE W oodbury2 LLC 

Total 

2016-2017 Assessed Valuation: 
2007-2008 Assessed Valuation: 

**Local Secured Assessed Valuation 

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc. 

Primary Use 

Residential 
Commercial 
Residential 
Commercial 
Miscellaneous 
Commercial 
Commercial 
Residential 
Residential 
Commercial 
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• BRE Properties Inc 
Cortese Properties LLC 
Tilden-Lafayette LLC 

• SHI-ill Lafayette LP 
• Oakwood Athletic Club LLC 
• DPW Diablo LP 
c Lafayette Park Hotel Associates 
IE Bay Glen LP 
__ Brian E and Deanna Moore Trust 
o AE Woodbury2 LLC 

2017 
Assessed 

Valuation 

$50,771,656 
35,168,142 
30,457,499 
24,572,129 
22,893,531 
20,503,586 
19,113,577 
17,611,248 
14,811,553 
13,908,925 

$249,811,846 

$7,478,118,355 
$5,109,378,277 

2017 

Percentage of 
Total Taxable 

Rank Assessed Value 

1 0.68% 
2 0.47% 
3 0.41% 
4 0.33% 
5 0.31% 
6 0.27% 
7 0.26% 
8 0.24% 

9 0.20% 
10 0.19% 

3.34% 

** 
** 



2008 

2008 Percentage of 
Assessed Total Taxable 

Taxpayer Primary Use Valuation Rank Assessed Value 

Bascom Lafayette Highlands LLC Residential $30,138,621 1 0.59% 
Oakwood Athletic Club LLC Commercial 19,533,833 2 0.38% 
Lafayette Park Hotel Associates Commercial 18,049,030 3 0.35% 
Realty Associates Fund VI LP Commercial 16,814,838 4 0.33% 
Bay Glen LP Residential 15,560,743 5 0.30% 
Gray Horse Investors Commercial 11,349,812 6 0.22% 
Joan E. Bruzzone Commercial 11,164,294 7 0.22% 
Lafayette Terrace LLC Commercial 10,850,850 8 0.21% 
Kenneth Harry Hofinann Trust Residential 10,716,203 9 0.21% 
Cortese Properties LLC Commercial 10,485,703 10 0.21% 

$154,663,927 3.03% 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES & COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

$9,000,000 

$8,000,000 

$7,000,000 

$6,000,000 

$5,000,000 

$4,000,000 

$3,000,000 

$2,000,000 

$1,000,000 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

~Tax Collections 

Collected within the 
Fiscal Year of the Levy 

Total Tax 
Fiscal Year Levy for Percentage of 

ended June 30 Fiscal Year Amount Levy 

2008 7,300,248 7,300,248 100.00% 

2009 8,042,309 8,042,309 100.00% 

2010 7,372,494 7,372,494 100.00% 

2011 7,680,137 7,680,137 100.00% 
2012 6,763,452 6,763,452 100.00% 

2013 5,259,337 5,259,337 100.00% 

2014 5,102,514 5,102,514 100.00% 
2015 5,427,316 5,427,316 100.00% 

2016 5,722,675 5,722,675 100.00% 
2017 5,929,562 5,929,562 100.00% 

Source: Contra Costa County Assessor 
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2015 2016 2017 

Total Collections to Date 

Percentage of 
Amount Levy 

7,300,248 100.00% 

8,042,309 100.00% 
7,372,494 100.00% 
7,680,137 100.00% 
6,763,452 100.00% 
5,259,337 100.00% 
5,102,514 100.00% 
5,427,316 100.00% 
5,722,675 100.00% 
5,929,562 100.00% 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

RATIOS OF DEBT OUTSTANDING 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Total Governmental 

$17,500,000 

U) 
c: 
0 

E 
c: -

Fiscal Year 

Ended 

June 30 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

2008 2009 2010 2011 

Outstanding Debt 

General Tax 

Obligation Allocation 

Bonds Bonds* 

9,255,000 16,905,000 
8,885,000 26,345,000 

8,530,000 26,035,000 

8,155,000 25,700,000 

8,025,000 
7,530,000 
7,080,000 
6,610,000 
6,120,000 
4,835,000 

Source: City of Lafayette Finance Department 

2012 2013 

Total Governmental 

Total 

$26,160,000 
$35,230,000 
$34,565,000 
$33,855,000 

$8,025,000 
$7,530,000 
$7,080,000 
$6,610,000 
$6,120,000 
$4,835,000 

2014 2015 2016 2017 

Percent of Percent of 

Assessed Personal Per 

Value Income Capita 

0.5120% 1.7311% $1,098 
0.6501 % 2.3005% $1,471 
0.6173% 2.3027% $1,434 
0.5989% 2.1437% $1,391 
0.1430% 0.5059% $332 
0.1327% 0.4746% $310 
0.1178% 0.4375% $287 
0.1021% 0.3998% $268 
0.0878% 0.3652% $246 
0.0647% 0.2659% $192 

*The balance of Tax Allocation Bonds was transferred to the Successor Agency as of February 1, 2012. 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT 

6/30/2017 

2016-17 Assessed Valuation (less incremental value): 

DIRECT DEBT: 
GO BONDS SERIES 2011 & 2016 

OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT: 

Contra Costa County Pension Debt and Lease Revenue Bonds 
Contra Costa Fire District 
Acalanes Union High School District 1997, 2002, & 2008 Bonds 
Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Contra Costa Community College District 
Pleasant Hill Recreation & Park Bond 2009 
East Bay Regional Park District 
Lafayette Elementary Bond 1995 
Orinda Elementary Bond 

TOTAL OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT 

TOTAL DIRECT DEBT 
TOTAL OVERLAPPING DEBT 

COMBINED TOTAL DEBT 

$6,831,470,609 

Total Debt 
6/30/2017 

$4,835,000 

$680,233,606 
75,540,000 
25,595,000 

250,836,245 
53,895,650 

311,801,590 
50,610,000 
12,617,364 

550,640,000 

% Ai;mlicable (1) 

100.000% 

4.092% 
8.912% 
1.304% 
4.092% 
4.092% 
23.625% 
89.842% 
15.900% 
4.107% 

City's Portion of 
Debt 6/30/17 

$4,835,000 

$27,835,925 
6,732,097 

333,875 
10,264,502 
2,205,471 

73,662,359 
45,469,259 

20,111 
22,616,545 

$189,140,144 

$4,835,000 
$189,140,144 

$193,975,144 (2) 

1) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable to the city is estimated using taxable assessed property value. Applicable 
percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the overlapping district's assessed value that is within the boundaries 
of the city divided by the district's total taxable assessed value. 

2) Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and non-bonded capital lease obligations. 

Ratios to 2016-17 Assessed Valuation: 
Total Direct Debt ($4,835,000) ............................................. 0.07% 
Total Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt ............................... 2.77% 

Combined Total Debt. .................................................. . 2.84% 

Source: HdL, Coren & Cone 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

June 30, 

2008 2009 2010 

Debt limit $191,601,685 $203,232,727 $209,965,799 

Total net debt applicable to limit 9,255,000 8,885,000 8,530,000 

Legal debt margin $182,346,685 $194,347,727 $201,435,799 

Total net debt applicable to the limit 
as a percentage of debt limit 4.8% 4.4% 4.1% 

The Government Code of the State of California provides for a legal debt limit of 15% of 
gross assessed valuation. However, this provision was enacted when assessed valuation was 
based upon 25% of market value. Effective with the 1981-82 fiscal year, each parcel 
is now assessed at 100% of market value (as of the most recent change in ownership 
for that parcel). Although the statutory debt limit has not been amended by the State since this 
change, the percentages presented in the above computations have been proportionately 
modified to 3.75% (25% of 15%) for the purpose of this calculation in order to be consistent 
with the computational effect of the debt limit at the time of the state's establishment of the 

limit. 

Source: City Finance Department 
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2011 

$211,974,416 

8,155,000 

$203,819,416 

3.8% 



June 30, 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

$210,444,124 $212,831,365 $225,310,387 $242,806,843 $261,503,297 $280,429,438 

8,025,000 7,530,000 7,080,000 6,610,000 6,120,000 4,835,000 

$202,419,124 $205,301,365 $218,230,387 $236,196,843 $255,3 83,297 $275,594,438 

3.8% 3.5% 3.1% 2.7% 2.3% 1.7% 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2.50 

2.00 

1.50 

1.00 

0.50 

0.00 
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

June 30 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

Tax 
Increment 

1,793,208 
2,186,914 
2,247,282 
3,216,617 
1,613,604 

I =+= Coverage I 

Tax Allocation Bonds 

Debt Service 
Principal* Interest* Coverage 

105,000 831,911 1.91 
190,000 957,803 1.91 
310,000 1,415,636 1.30 
335,000 1,403,939 1.85 
390,000 1,390,236 0.91 

Note: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial 
statements. 

*The balance of the Tax Allocation Bonds was transferred to the Successor Agency as of February 1, 2012. 
Principal and interest payments are recorded through January 31, 2012. 

Source: City Finance Department 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
ANNUAL AVERAGE LABOR FORCE 
AND UNEMPLOYMENT RATES 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Annual Average UnemJ!lOiment Rates 
City of Lafayette County State of California 

City of Lafayette Unemployment Unemployment Unemployment 
Calendar Year Labor Force Rates Rates Rates 

2007 * 1.6% 4.7% 5.4% 

2008 * 2.2% 6.2% 7.3% 

2009 * 3.8% 9.9% 11.2% 

2010 11,200 4.1% 11.0% 12.2% 

2011 11,300 3.8% 10.3% 11.7% 

2012 11,500 2.5% 9.0% 10.4% 

2013 11,700 2.2% 7.5% 8.9% 

2014 11,900 3.4% 6.2% 7.5% 

2015 12,100 2.7% 5.0% 6.2% 

2016 12,300 2.4% 4.4% 5.4% 

* Information was not available for 2006 through 2009 

Source: State of California Employment Development Department 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 

PRJNCIP AL EMPLOYERS 
CURRENT FISCAL YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
June 30, 2017 

Employer 

Lafayette School District** 

Whole Foods Market *** 
Lafayette Park Hotel & Spa * 
Oakwood Athletic Club *** 
Diablo Foods *** 
Safeway Stores 

Acalanes High School ** 
PSR Westcoast Builders 

Trader Joe's 
Bentley Upper School (9-12th) 

Total Top Employers 

Total City Employment (1) 

* Includes Park Bistro and Bar 
** Includes classified, certificated and admin. 

*** Includes full and part time employees 

Number of 
Employees 

485 
215 
185 

165 
150 

132 
120 

80 

75 
74 

1,681 

12,300 

(1) Total City Labor Force provided by EDD Labor Force Data 

Source: MuniServices, LLC 
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2017 2008 

Percent of Total Number of Percent of Total 
Employment Employees Employment 

3.94% NIA NIA 
1.75% NIA NIA 
1.50% NIA NIA 
1.34% NIA NIA 
1.22% NIA NIA 
1.07% NIA NIA 
0.98% NIA NIA 
0.65% NIA NIA 
0.61% NIA NIA 
0.60% NIA NIA 

13.67% 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Function/Program 

Administration 
Parks 
Police 
Public works 
Planning 
Engineering 

Total 

"' 

40 

35 

30 

25 

f;i;:i 20 
~ 

15 

10 

5 

0 

2008 

8.87 
6.75 
4.00 

2.00 
9.00 
9.00 

39.62 

Source: Human Resources 

2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 

• Administration • Parks ti Police 

Public works CJ Planning Engineering 

Full-Time Equivalent Employees as of June 30, 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

8.87 8.87 9.37 8.97 8.47 7.87 7.72 7.72 
6.00 6.00 6.68 6.00 6.00 6.75 7.55 5.75 

4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 

2.50 3.75 2.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 6.00 

9.00 9.00 8.50 8.00 8.00 8.60 9.00 9.00 

8.00 8.00 8.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 

38.37 39.62 38.55 36.97 36.47 37.22 38.27 39.47 

Note: Contract employees, such as all of the sworn officers in the police department, are not included in this table. 
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2017 

7.72 
5.75 
4.20 
6.00 
9.00 
7.00 

39.67 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 
LAST TEN YEARS 

(Departments track indicator data either by fiscal year or calendar year based on what is optimal for their operations. Data here represents 
indicator counts for a 365 day period, which is either January 1 through December 31 or July 1 through June 30.) 

Function/Program 

Police 
Total reports 
Calls for service 
% officer-initiated activity 
Overall Part 1 crimes 
# of residential burglaries 
% of residential burglaries solved 

Public Works 
Work requests (outside normal service) 

Abatement issues 
Curb painting 
Ditch cleaning 
Litter removal 
Sign installation, repair, replacement 
Street repair 
Tree/brush maintenance 
Trimming vegetation 

Engineering 
Encroachment permits 

Recreation 
Class enrollments 
Senior transportation- rides provided 

Planning 
Total applications processed 

Design Review Permits 
General Pan Amendment 
Hillside Development Permits 
Second Unit 
Sign Permits 
Tree Permits 
Variance Permits 

Code Enforcement Incidents 

2007 

* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 

* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 

* 

8,874 
1,892 

269 
32 

* 

62 
5 

10 
13 
27 

2008 

* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 

* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 

* 

7,871 
2,154 

248 
40 

2 
48 

8 
9 

16 
21 

* 

2009 

* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 

* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 

* 

8,595 
2,399 

239 
24 

3 
45 

7 
16 
15 
2 

* 

2010 

* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 

* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 

* 

9,236 
2,979 

251 
26 

1 
33 

* 

5 
10 
28 
10 

*No indicator data available because program did not exist or indicator was not tracked. 

2011 

* 
* 
* 
* 

* 

* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 

85 

380 

8,643 
3,104 

232 
22 

1 
39 
4 
2 

32 
21 

* 

2012 

* 
15,760 

* 
441 

70 

* 

* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 

385 

9,953 
3,878 

265 
26 

* 

35 
5 

12 
32 
15 

2013 

* 
16,519 

* 
496 

61 

* 

285 
53 
18 
3 
4 

61 
31 
6 

10 

465 

11,714 
3,979 

287 
22 

38 
3 
6 

35 
12 

190 

** Indicator data has not yet been tabulated because the period has not yet ended. (Tracks on the calendar year.) 

Source: Various City Departments 
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2014 

1,526 
16,049 

37% 
404 
48 

33% 

210 
32 

8 
1 
9 

53 
20 

9 
9 

466 

9,794 
4,316 

279 
30 

1 
41 

2 
10 
45 
14 

228 

2015 

1,798 
18,580 

41% 
548 
22 

60% 

365 
54 
21 
6 
5 

98 
32 
20 

6 

564 

12,423 
4,237 

288 
23 

52 
6 
6 

43 
15 

305 

2016 

1,652 
18,506 

42% 
441 

31 
53% 

337 
3 
4 

21 
22 
75 
38 
23 
25 

447 

15,081 
3,813 

347 
35 

3 
57 
13 
16 
55 
16 

436 



CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
CAPITAL ASSETS STATISTICS BY FUNCTION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

June 30, 
Function 2008 2009 2010 2011 

Police 
Patrol vehicles * * * * 
ALPR Vehicles * * * * 
Traffic motorcycles * * * * 
Dual sport motorcycles * * * * 
All terrain vehicles * * * * 
Equipment trailers * * * * 
Speed trailers * * * * 
Parking vehicles * * * * 
Drones * * * * 
Public works 
Vehicles * * * * 
Trailers * * * * 
Streetlights * * * * 
Traffic signals * * * * 
Trellis lights * * * * 
Landscape acreage * * * * 
Trail miles * * * * 
Pedestrian and advance warning signs * * * * 
Engineering 
Vehicles * * * * 

l Streets (centerline miles) * * * * l' 

Recreation (incl. Sr. Trans,gortation) 
Vehicles * * * * 

~ 
Parks acreage * * * * ' 

I 
f1 

Planning ,, 
C' 
1 

Vehicles * * * * 

* No information available. 

Source: Various City Departments 
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June 30, 
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

* * * 17 20 19 

* * * * * 2 

* * * 3 3 3 

* * * 2 2 2 

* * * * 1 1 

* * * 4 4 4 

* * * 2 2 2 

* * * 4 3 3 

* * * * * 2 

* * * 10 11 9 

* * * * * 1 

* * * 458 458 476 

* * * 24 24 26 

* * * 60 60 60 

* * * 7 7 7 

* * * 10 10 10 

* * * * 16 18 

* * * 7 6 5 

* * * 93 93 93 

* * * 3 3 4 

* * * 80 80 80 

* * * 3 3 3 
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CITY OF LAFAYETTE 
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA 
June 30, 2017 

Year of Incorporation 

Fann of Government 

Population 

MedianAge 

Median Household Income 

Registered Voters 

Area in Square Miles 

Number of Authorized Full-Time Equivalent City Employees 

Miles of Streets: 
Public Miles 

Private miles 

Fire Protection: 
Contra Costa Fire District 

Number of Stations 

Police Protection: 
Number of Stations 

Number of Contracted Sworn Personnel 

Public Education: 
Elementary Schools 

Middle Schools 

High Schools 

Libraries: (Contracted with Contra Costa County) 

Number of Libraries 

Recreation and Culture: 
Park Sites 

Park Acreage 

Community Facilities: 
Lafayette C01mnunity Center 

Source: Various City of Lafayette Department Records 
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1968 

General Law 

25,199 

44.4 

$142,915 

17,644 

15.39 

39.67 

93 

43 

2 

1 

17 

4 

1 
1 

1 

4 

80 

1 




